APOLLO HOSPITALS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CIN: USS5110TN1997PLC039016

Regd. Office: 19, Bishop Gardens, R. A. Puram,
Chennai — 28, Tamil Nadu — 600 028

Audited Standalone Financial Statements

for the year ended on 31* March, 2019



Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

&l amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

Particular A8 Bt fo L
MWote No 3-Mar-18 43,190.00
ASBETS
Mon-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 B25.250,712 896,193,764
(b Capital work-in-progress 5 - -
ic) Other Intangible assets &1 2,628 496 706, 264
{d} Financial Assels
(i} Investments
a} Investments in Subsidiaries 7 251,246,800 201,000,000
by Investments in Joint Ventures 7 33 350,000 33,350,000
{it} Trade receivables a - -
(i} Other financial assets a 64 858,710 64,710,747
{e} Deferred tax assets (Net) 149 103,008,376 123,115,968
{fy Other non-current assets 12 - =
Total Non - Current Assets 1,280,344 094 1,319,166,813
Current assets
(&) Inventories 10 32,708,299 75,857 466
ik Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables i 436,661,325 412 348 268
{ify Cash and cash equivalents 11.1 71,899 975 51,771,137
(iii} Bank balances other than (i) above 9,548 476 12,534,248
(iv) Cther financial assats 2 3,695,729 2,484 381
(o) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 164,293,223 122,032,087
id) Other current assets 12 140,620 581 121,494 534
£55,327,608 798,622,149
Assels classified as held for sale - oo
Total current assets 859,327 808 758,522,149

Total assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In tarms of our report attached
For, 5.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 0047705/5200025
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Apollo Hospltals International Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 20198

All amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

) As at As at
f A Note No 3-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 14 1.006,030,680 1,006,030,680
(b} Convertible nen-participating prefarence share capital - -
{©) Other equity 15 178 286 804 55,787 514
Total Equity 1,184, 317,488 1,061,828,194
Liabllitles
MNon-current liabilities
{a} Financial Liakilities
(i) Barrowings 16 445 738 656 H61,150,368
(i) Qther financial liabilities 17 1,819 5586 1,754 585
(b} Provigians 18 18,317 857 18,066,053
(c) Deferred tax liabiiities (Met) - -
id) Other ron-current liahilities 2 -
Total Non - Current Liabilities 465,876,229 581,011,007
Current llabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{f Borrowings 16 71,135,485 70,128,185
{ii} Trade payables 20 67,206 650 67,601,325
{iily Other financial liabilities 17 123,030,247 124,251,728
i) Provisions 18 10,802,372 12,253,505
(g} Current Tax Liabilities (Net) = -
[d) Other current liabilities 21 217,203,250 200,615,020
489,477 985 474 848 761
Liabilities directly aszociated with assets classified . -
as held for sale
Total Current Liabilities 489,477 985 474 849 761
Total Liabilities 955 354 214 1,055 B, 768

Total Equity and Liabilities 2,139,671,702 2,117 688 962

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

f

In terms of our report attached
For, 5.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 0047T0S/5200025
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Partner Director Director
M No. 022167 _
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Deepak-87 Tharanee Mikunj Vyas

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 16th May, 20149



Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2019

All amaounts are in Rupees except for earnings per share information

Year ended Year ended
Particul ;

(el Note No. rarch 31,2019 March 31, 2018
| Revenue from Operatians 22 1,888.925 734 1.801,710.442
I ther Income 23 16,6588 780 5 B38 669
I Total Income {1+11} 1,306.614,621 1,B07,649,111
¥ Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 24 607 955,085 532,661,158
Purchases of Stock-in-trade B7. 265,206 102,450,360
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 25 4772056 25,622,080
Employes benefit expense 26 313,267 380 309,514,326
Finance costs 27 70,620,562 75,246 538
Depreciation and amortisation expanse 28 B4 228 926 88,000,733
Cther expenzes 29 553 653,764 543 284351
Total expenses (V) 1,721,763,018 1,680,669,555
¥ Share of profit / (loss) of associates - -
VI Share of profit / (less) of joint ventures -
Vil Profitf{loss) before tax (H-1V+V+1) 183,851,503 126,979,556
VIl Tax expense
(1) Current tax 29.3 47 144 8BB4 27,818,400
(1.1} MAT Entitlement Availed 29.3 (42,144 854 (27,618,400
(2) Deferrad tax 283 61,993,230 42 817,602
61,993 230 42 817,602
¥ Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VI 121,858,273 84,161,954
¥ Profit(loss) fram discontinuad operations befare tax - -
Xl Tax Expense of discontinued operaticns -
Xl Profit!{loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) - 5
XN Profit!{loss) for the period (1X+XI1) 121,858,273 B4,161,954
Other Comprehensive Income
A i) ems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
[a) Remeasurerments of the defined benefit liabilities / {(assat) 890,267 0 459 B45
(B} Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - =
{z] Others {specify natura) - =
{d} Share of other comprehensive incame in associates and - 5
joint ventures. 1o the
extent not to be reclassified to profit or lass
390,267 9,450 845
A i} Income tax relating ta iterns that will not be reclassified ta profit of loss 258,246 3,216,247
B {i) temms that will be reclassified to profit or loss
ia) Exchange differences in translating the financial - “
statements of foreign operations
(b} Debt instruments through other comprehansive incame - -
[c)Others (spacify nature) - -
(d) Share of other comprebensive income in assocliates and - -
joint venturas, to the
extent that may be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified ta profit or loss - %
XV Other comprehensive income for the period (A [i-ii+B{i-ii)) 631,024 6,243 498
XY Total comprehensive income for the perlad 122,489,294 90,405,452

(XX 1) )




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the perlod ended March 31, 2019

Al amounts are in Rupees except far eamings per share information

z Year ended Year ended
Particular MNote No.  March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit for the year attributable to:
Dwnears of the Company 122 489,293 80,405,451
Mon controlling interests - -
122 489,293 80,406 451
Other comprehensive income for the yvear attributable to;
Ownars of the Company - -
Maon cantrolling inferasts - B
Total comprehensive income far the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 122,489 253 90,405 451
Man controlling interests - =
122,489,283 490,405 451
Earnings per equity share {for continuing operation): kY|
Basic {in Rs) 0.90
Diluted {in Rs.) (N8 =143

Ses accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, 5. Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn, No: DD47T70S/5200025

¥ € Krishnan
Partner
M Mo, 022167

Place ; Gandhinagar \ :
Date : 16th May, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

7{{;};/

Director

Director

i/’ A & /"J"‘H' V.(jﬂpg i
Dee pk‘a./'lfharanaa Mikunj Vyas
Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary



Apaollo Hospitals Intermational Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement as nn March 31, 2019

{&mounts in INR Rupees uniess otherwiae stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit befare tax for the year
Adiustrments for

Finance costs recognisad in profit or loss

Interest Income recagnised in profit or loss

Rental income recognised in profit or loss

Other income recagnised in profit or loss

Met Frofit or loss on Sale of Assets

Adjustments for OCI

Provisions for Doubtful Debts

Aciual Bad Debt written off in profit or loss statement

Cepreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

Met foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Movemeants in working capital:

Ingrease in trade and other recewvaocles
(Increase)/decrease in amour.t: due from customers
(Increase)/decrease in inventorss
(Increase)idecreases in other assets
(Increase)fdecrease in other financial assets

Decrease in trade and other payables
Increase{decrease) in amoum s due to trade payables

Increasel/idecraasa) in provisie,s
(Decreaselincrease in other liahilities
(Decreaselincrease in other financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes (paid)  refunds
Met cash generated by operating activitus

Cash flows from invasting activities
Interest received
Rental Income from properties & operating Lease
Dther Income recsived
Investments in associates
Payments for property, plant and eguipmeant
Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment

Faymants for intangible assets
Met cash (used in)generated by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from ssue of equity instruments of the Company

Proceeds from bormowings
Repayment of borrowings & others
Interest paid

Met cash used in financing activities

MWet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effects of exchange rate changes on the baltance of cash hald in

foreign currancigs
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended

31 March 2019

Year ended

31 March 2018

_ (47526843

{12,29,15 662)
(535,47 528)

(58.22,B02)

S Ap3A2886

18.38,51.503 12,69,79,656
7065, 20,552 752 45 538
{1,02,02,378) {43,759 584)
(73.65,942) (75,85 063)
(3.83,1596) (4.96,231)
1,13, 2068 (7.02,298)
5.90, 267 94 5D 545
1,32 84,778 66,51,136
6,70 607 a0,75.078
8,42 28 036 8,80,00.733
{61,03.255) (383120}
[3.21,75,166) {11.09,48,5348)
431,49 167 [2.4262414)
(1.91,26,060) 7.76,38,609
{12,60,260) {28.75,003)
(3,94 675) 38.31,792
{10.99,198) B.47.533
1,70,19 257 (6,93 .46 837)
(11.96.478) {3,70,162}
334531711 17,02,00,078_
(8,44 06 950} {42 09 B16)
TTEEpgs7e1 165900262
1,02.02.378 43.79,5684
7365942 75.85,063
283,156 496,231
(502,46 ,800) (15,00.00,000)
{1,21,82,851) (14 57.36,721)
1,86,158 15,93 598

§2.32.159)

" {28,19,14,444)

(18,64 683 289)
18135788

15,00,00,000

10,10,00,000
(11,2346 7&7)
(6.51,94,834)

7.34.58,279

(4,25 55,903)

3.67.30.537
2,565

~ (58,22,802)




Apollo Hospitals Intemational Limitad
Standalone Cash Flow Statement as on March 31, 2019

tAmounts in INF Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Reconcilation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash Year ended Year ended
flow statement 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Svailable with company for day to day operations 7.06.08,033 5,08,68 065
Awailable with company as earmarked balances 1,08.40,418 1,33,37 297
Bank overdrafts (7.11,35 485) {7.01,28 185)
Balances as per statement of cash flows 1,03,12,986 (58,22.802)
In terms of our report attached
For 3. Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 004705/5200025
R G
s 5 T
WV C Krishnan Vi Director Director
Fartner f o=y e
M. Mo- D22167 =k ; | |
Place : Gandhinagar Deepak 5. Tharanee Mikunj Vyas

Date : 16th May, 2019

Chief Financiy Officer

Company Secretary



Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity as on March 31, 2019

Amounts in INE Rupees unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Balance at April 1, 2017

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2018

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2018

b. Other Equity

Amount

B56, 030,680
150,000, 000

e i Resiierl Bt

1,006,030 680

e e

1,006,030, 680

Balance at April 1, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2019

See accompanying notes to the Standalone financial
statements

Securities Ind AS Retained Other Sub -total
premium  Transition earmings Comprehensive carried
reserve Reserve Incoma forward
444 033,295 18411817 (495,380,919) {1,863,130} (34,607,937}
- - 84,161,954 - 84 161,954

- - - 5,243 4598 G243, 488

o - A4 161,854 62473 498 90,405,452
444,033,285 18411817  (411,227,965) 4,580,368 58,797,515
- - 121,858,273 121,858,273

- - 531,021 31,021

- - 121,B58,273 531,021 122,489,294
444,033,295 18,411,817 (289,369,692) 5,211,389 1?8,285,8&9




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Motos to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Al amounts are in Bupees unless otharwise stated

1 General Information
Apollo Hospitals Intermational Limited (AHIL), Ahmedabad is a tediary care unit of the Apollo Hospitals Company, Chennai. The Hospital
focuses on centers ol excollence like Cardiac Sciences, Meuro Sciences, Orthopedics, Cancer, Emergency Medlcing and Solid Crgan
Transplants besides the complete range of more than 35 allied medical disclplings under the same roof, AHIL is subsidary of Apallo Hospilals
Enterprise Limited {'the Gompmany'} which is a public Company incorporated in India

2 Application of new and revised Ind ASs
The company has applied all tha Ind ASs notified by the MCA. There are no Ind AS Lthal have net bean applled by the cormpany.

3 Significant accounting policies

3.1 Statement of complifance
The Standalone financisl statements have heen prepared In accordance with Ind ASs netified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015,

3.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
Tha Standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis excepl for senain financial instruments that are measured
at falr valugs at the end of each reporting perind, as explained in the accounting policies balow.
Historlcal cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration niven in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between markel panicipants
al the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly chservable or estimated using anather valuation technigua. In estimating
the fair value of an assal or a liability, the Company takes into account tha characteristios of the asset or liability if market participans would
take thase characterizhies into account when pricing the assel or liablity at the messuremant date, Fair value for measurement andfar
disclasure purposes in these Standalone financial stalements is determined on such a hasis_leasing transactions that are within the scope of
Ind &5 17, and measurements that have some similarities 1o fair value bul are not fair valua, such as net raalisable value in Ind AS 2 or value
in use in Ind AS 34,

In additian, for financial raporing purposes, fair valug measurements ara categonsed infa Leval 1. 2. or 2 based on the degres o which the
inpuls to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to tha fair value measurament in its enfirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 Inputs are quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idantical assets or linbilitias that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inpuis, other than guoted prices included within Leval 1, thal are chservable for the assel or lability, either directly or
indirecity; and

Level 3 Inpuls are unobservable inpuls for the assat or liability.
The principal accounting policles are set out balow.

3.3 Investments In associates and jolnt ventures

& Joint venture is a Jolnt arangemeni wheraby tne parties that have joint control of tha arrangement hava rights to the net assets of the joini
arrangemant. Joint control is the contraciually agreed sharing of cantrol of an arrangament, which exists anly when decisions about the relevant
aclivities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Tha rasults and assets and liabilities of associates or jalnt ventures are incorperated in these Standalone financial statements using the eguity
mathod of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion fheraof, is classified as held for 2ale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with Ind &5 108, Under the equity mathod. an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in e Standalons
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company's share of the profil or logs and othar comprehensive income of the
associate ar joint venlure. Distributions recaived from an associate of a joint venture reduca the carrying amaunt of the investment. When the
Company's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture excaads the Company's interast in that associata of joint venture twhich includes
any long-term interesls that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the associela or joint veniural, the Company
discantinues recagnising its share af further losses, Additional losses ara recognised only to the extent that the Company has incurrad legal or
censtructive obligations of made payments an behalf of the asscciate or jeint wenture,

An investment in an associate or a joinl venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date an which the investes becomes an
associate ar a jaint venture. On acquisition of the Investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Campany's shara of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investes Is recognised as goodwill, which is includad
wilhin the carrying amount of the investment, Any axcess of the Company's share of the net fair valua of the identifiable assels and liabilities
aver the cost of fhe invesiment, after reassessmant, is recognized directly in aquity as capital resarve In the period in which the investment is
acquired

After application of the aquity mathod of accounting, the Company determines whether thare any s ohjective evidence of impairment as a
rasull of one or more evants {hat occurred after the initial recagnition of the net investment In an associate or a joint veniure and thal event for
events) has an impact on lhe estimated future cash flows frem he net investment that can be raliably estimated. If fhera exisls such an
objectiva evidence of impairmant, then it s necessary to recognise impalrment loss with respect 10 the Company's investmeant in an associate
or &8 joint vanlure,

\When necessary, the entire carrying ameunt of the investment {including goodwill} is tasted for Impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36
impairment of Assals as a single asset by comparing & recoverable amaunt {higher of value in usa and fair valua less cosis of disposal) with
ts camying amaunt, Any Impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investrment, Any revarsal of thal impaimment [oss
Is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amoumt of the investmant subsequently increases,

Nhem-
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statlemants for the year ended March 31, 2018
All amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

Tha Company discontinues the use of the equity method fram the date when the investment ceazes to be an asscciate or a joini veniure, or
wihan he Ivestmant is classified as held for sale, When the Company retaing an interest In the former associate or joinl venture ard the
retained interest is a financial assed, the Company measures fhe relained interest af fair value at that date and the fair value is regardad as iis
fair valua on Inltal recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109, The difference between the carrying armount of the associate or joint venlure al
the date the aquily method was discontinued, and the fair value of any ratained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a pard interest in
the associate o joint venture is incledad in the determination of the gain of loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Company accounts for all ameounis previously recognised in ather comprenensive income In relation to thel assoclate or joint vantura on the
same basls as would be required I that associate or joint vaniure had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities, Therefore, If a gain or
loss previously recognised in olher comprehensive income by that associate or jeint venture would be reclassified to profit ar loss on the
dispasal of the related amssats or llablities, the Company reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit of loss {as a reclazelfication
adjustment) when the equity mathod is discontinued.

The Company continues to use the equity method when an investment inoan associate becomes an investment inoa joint venture or an
investment in a joint venturs becomes an invesiment in an associate, Thers is no remeasurament to fair valug upon such changses In
awnership interests.

When the Company reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a Joint venture but the Company continuas 1o use the equity method, the
Company reclassifies te profit or loss the propertion of the gein or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprahansive iNcome
relating to thal reduction in ownership interast If that gain or loss would ba reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assals or
liahilitias.

When a Company entily transacts with an asscclate or a joint venture of the Company, profits and losses resulting frem the transactions with
the asscciate or joinl venlure are recognised in the Company’s Standalone financial statements only to the extent of interasts in the associate
or joint venture that ara not related to the Company.

Invastment in Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary are measured at cost less impairment if any,

Ravenue recognition

Rendering of servicas

Healthcare Services

Revenus primailly comprizes fees chargad for inpatient and outpatient hoepital services. Services include charges for accommodalion,

theatre, medical professicnal services, agquipment, radiology, laboratery and pharmacautical goods used, Revenue Is recorded and recognized
during the paried in which the hospital service is provided. based upon the esfimaied amaounts due from patients andlor medical funding
entitias, Unbilled revenue 1s recorded Tor the service where the patienls are not discharged and invoice 1s not ralzod for the samice,

Tha company eams revenue primarily from medical services.

The services rendered by the entity is in single geegraphical location with ona Lype of service, mainly randering medical services with a single
{ype of customer wha is narmatly referred to as a palient with defined contract duraticn, subject fo severe exigencies unknown at the time of
admizsion of the patient and Involves only one type of sales channel which is haspital services diractly to the patient,

Effective April 1,2018 the sempany has appliad Ind As 115 which establishes a comprehensive framawork for determining whather, how mush
and whan revenue is lo be recognised, Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 revenug recognition

\WWe have adopled the outpul methods which recagnize revenue on the basis of direct measuremants of the value to the customer on the basis
of goods or services lransferred to date, relative 1o the remaining goods or sarvices promised under the contract,

The service revenues are presented net of related doctor fees in cases where the company is nat the primary otliger and does nof have the
pricing latituda,

Bale of Goods

Fharmacy Sales are recogrisad when the risk and reward of ownership is passed fo the cusiomer, Revenua is measured at tha falr valug of fhe
consideration received or raceivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of paymant and excluding faxes or duties collected on
behalf of the govemment. Revenue s reduced for rebates and loyalty poinis granted upon purchase and are stated net of retums and
discounts wherever applicabla

Dividend and Interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when 11 is probable that the economic benefits will flow Lo the Company and the amount of

income can be maasured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a fime basis, by reference to the principal culstanding and at the effective
interest rate appiicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts through tha evpecied life of the financial asset o
that asset's net camying amouni on initial recegnition.

Rental incomea

The Company's pelicy for recognition of revenue from aperaling leasas |3 described in note 3.5.5 balaw.

Leasing
Leases are classified @s finance leases whenever the ferms of the leasa transfer substanfially all the risks and rewards of ownership to tha
lasson. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Tha Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's nat Investment in e leasas.
Finance lease income is allasated 1o accounting periods so as la reflect a constan! perodic rate of return on the Company's net invastmant
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from aperaling leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. \Where the rentals ara
siructured sclely to increase in ling with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expecied infiationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which sueh benefits acorue. Inifial direet costs incurred in negotiating and aranging an cperating lease
are added to tha carrying amaount of the leased assel and recognised on a straight-ling basis over the lease term.

The Company 8s lesses R —
Assats held under finance leases are inifially recagnisad as assets of the Company al their falr valug at the insaption of ma{fgq'g!‘dﬁ,'-if lewigar, al
the present valug of the minimum lease paymants. The correspanding liability {o the lessor is included in the Stal1dalgﬂﬂﬁ/§lé”ﬁ.5!"99‘ a5
finance laasa obligation. A S AT i)
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Apolle Hospitals International Limited
Hotes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Al amounts are in Bupees unkess othensise stated

Leasze payments are apporioned betwean finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achiova a constant rale of interest
on the ramaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immeadiately in profit or loss, unlass they ara directly sttributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's general palicy on borowing costs (see note 3.8 below)
Contingent rentals are recognisad as expenses in tha perods in which they are incurred.

Rental expense from cperating leases is generally recognisad on a8 straight-line basis over the term of tha relevant lease Where the rentals are
strugtured solaly to increase in ling with expected general inflation to compansate for the lessor's axpected Inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefils accrua, Confingent rentals arising under operating leazes are recognised as an
expense in the percd in which they are incurred

In tHe even! thal lease incenlives are recaivad to entar inlo operaling leases, such incentives are recognised as & liability. The aggregata
hanedit of incentivas is recognised as a raduction of rental expense on a siraighl-ling basis, except where another systemalic basis is more
repraseniative of tha ima pattem in which economic benelils fram the leased assel are consumed.

1.5.6 Fareign currencies
In preparing the financial statements of each individual Company enfity, transactions in currancias other than the entity's functional currency
[foreign cumencies) are recognised af the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Al tha end of each reporting period,
maonetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at that date. Mon-monatary tems carmed at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Mon-
maonetary ltems that are meazured intemms of histerical costin a fareign currency are nof retransiated
Exehange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or Ioss in the perod in which they arise except for:
v axchange differences on foreign curency borowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included In the
cost of those assets whan they are regarded as an adjustmant to interest costs on those fareign curensy borrowings;
« exchange differancas on monetary ilems recaivable from or payable to a foralgn operation for which settlement is neither plannad ner likaly Lo
poeur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the forgign aperation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary ilems,

1.6 Borrowings and Borrowing costs
Borowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of franaaction costs incurred. Borowings are subsequeantly stated at amortised cost, Any
difference betwesn the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption valus is recogrisad In the Income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest rate method, Bormowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an uncandifional
right 1o defer setiemeant of the liability for at least 12 months after the repoering date.

Bomrowing costs directly attribetable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets. which are aszels that necessarily take a
substantial perod of time to get ready for their inlended use or sale, are added to the cost of thosae assats, until such lime as the assets are
substantially ready for their intendad use ar sale

Interest income earnad on he temparary investmant of speciiic borowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borowing costs aligible for capitalisation.

All other barrawing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pariod Inwhich they are incured,

3.7 Government grants
Giovarnimant grants are not recegnised untll there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditicns attaching o them
and that the grants will be recenved.
Gowarnmeni grants are racognised in profit or loss ona syslematic basls ovar the pariods in which the Company recognises as expenses ho
ralated costs for which the grants are intended 1o compensale. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company
should purchasea, construct o otherwisa acqulre Ron-curmant assets ame recognised as defered revenue in the Standalone balance sheat and
transferrad fo profit ar loss on a systemalic and rational basis over tha useful fives of the rolated assets.
Gowvernmeni grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already Incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Company with no fufure relaled costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pardod In which they become receivable
The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interast is reated as 8 govemment grant, measured as the differonce betweaen
proceads received and the fair value of the foan based on prevailing market interest rates.

3.8 Employee benefits

3.8.1 Retlrement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement banefit plans are recegnised as an expense when employess have randerad sarvice entitling them
fa the contribuions,

For dafined benefil retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benafits is determined using tha projected unlt credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carred cut at the end of each annual reporting pariod. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicabla) and the refurn on plan assets {excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balanca
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprahansive Income in tha paried In which they cccur. Remeasurement recognised in ather
coemprehensive Income is reflected immediately Inrelained eamings and Is not reclassified to prefit or loss, Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the perlod of a plan amendmant. Met interas! is calculated by applying the discount rata at the baginning of the period to the net
defined benalil lizblity or assel. Defined benefit costs are categonsed as follows:

+ sarvice cost (ncluding currant sarvice cost, past servica cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and sattlements);
* net Interes| expense of incemea; and
* ramaasuremant

The Company presents the first wo compenants of defined benafil costs in profit or loss in the ling itam ‘Employea banefils expense’.
Curailment gains and losses ane accountad for as past servica costs.

The retirerneni banefit obligation recognised in the Standalone balance sheel reprazents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined
banefif plans, Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from tha plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liahility for & termination benefit is recognised at tha earier of when tha entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the lermination benafit and
when the entity recognizes any related restrucluring costs,

3.8.2 Short-term and other long-term employes benefits :
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing fa emplayees in respect of weges and salaries, annual lzave and s.u::k béa E'I!'I jhe period he

related senvice is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefils expegted to be paid In exchange for that semu‘e RECh. Mo "-.,"-*' A

Liabilities recognised in respect of shor-term employea benafils are maasysd at the undiscounted amount of the hf sfifs ds-!ﬂ'f a:hrn b Praid

in exchange for the related service. | ! ZRO0ES |
/ \" i | MsAl

L_{_____,,-e
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Liabllities recognised in respect of othar long-larm employee benefils ane measured at the present value of the estimated future cash oulflows
expected to be made by the Company in reaspact of services providad by employess up to the reporting date.

3.8.1 Contributions from employess or third parties to defined benefit plans

3.81

Discretionary contribufions made by employaas or third parties reduca service cost upon payment of these contributions Lo the plan,

Whan the formal ferms of the plans specify thal there witl be contributions from employees or third parfies. the accounting depends on whether
{he contributions are linked to service, as follows:

_ i the contributions are not linked to services (e.g. contrbutions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses on plan assets ar from
acluarial losses), they are refiected in the remeasurement of the nat defined benefit liability {asset).

If confributions are linked to services, they reduce senvice costs, For the amount of confribution that is depandent on the number of years of
service, the Company reduces sarvice cost by attibuting the contributions 1o perods of sarvice using the atiribution method required by Ind AS
1% for {ha gross benefits, For the amount of contributicn that is indepandent of the numbar of years of service, the Company reduces service
cost in fhe perod in which the related service is rendered ( reduces service cost by attributing contributions to the amployees' perinds of
zanvice in accordance with Ind A5 19,

Taxation
Income lax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payabla and deferred tax.

Curront tax

The tax curenlly payable is based on laxable profit for he year. Taxable profil differs from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss because of items of incoma or expansa fhat are taxghle or deductible in othar years and items that are never
{axable or daductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates thal have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of
the reparting perod

3.9.2 Daferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences batween the canrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Standatone financial
slatements and the correspending lax bases used in the computation of taxabla profit. Deferrad tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temparary differences, Deferred tax assets are ganerally recognised for all deductible lamporary differences 1o tha extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which those deductible tamporary differences can be utiised. Such deferred tax assals
and liabilitias ara nol recognised if tha temporary differenca arses frem the imitial recognition {othar than in a business combination) of assels
and liahilities in a transaction that affects neifher the taxable profit nor the accaunting profit. In addition, defered tax llabilities are not
recagnised if the lemporary differance anses from fhe initial recegnition of goodwill,

Defarrad 1ax labiities are recognised for taxable temporary differencas associated with Investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint veniures, except where the Company is able to conirol the reversal of tha lemporary differance and il is probable that the
temporary difference will nat raverse in the foresesable fulure, Deferad tax assets ansing from dedustibla temparary differences associatad
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probabla ihat there will ba sufficient 1axable profits against which
{n utllise the benefits of the temparary differences and they are axpacled o reverse in the foreseeable fulure

The camylng amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at the end of each repoiting peried and reduced to the extent that it is na lenger
probabile that sufficient taxable profits will ba avatlable to allaw all or part of the asset to ba recovered,

Diefarrad tax llabiliies and assets are measured at the lax rates that are expected to apply In the perod In which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) thal have been enasted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

The measurement of deferrad {ax lisbillies and assets reflects the tax consequances that would fallew from the manner in which the Company
axpects, at the end of the reporting pericd, 1o recover or sefile the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.9.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

3.10

Current and dalarred 1ax are recognisad In profit or loss, excepl when they relate to ltems that are recognized in ather comprehansive moomes
or direcily in egquily. in which casa, the cument and deferrad lax dre also racogrized in other comprehensive income ar directly In equity
respectively, Whare current tax or defarred Lax arises from tha initial accounting for a business combination, the tax offect is inciudad in the
accounfing for the business combination.

Prapearty, plant and equipmaent

Land and buildings mainly comprise hospitals and offices. Land and buildings hald for use in the production or supply of goods or sarvices, or
for administrative purposes, are stalad in the Standalone balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaiment
lnsses, Frachold land is not depreciatad.

Fixiures, plant and medical equipment are slaled at cost less accumulaled depreciation and accurnulated Impaiment logzes, All repairs and
maintenance casls are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurrad

Properfies in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are camied al cost, less any recognised impairment
loss, Cest includes professional feas and. for qualifying assels. borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting
prlicy. Such properties are classified 1o the appropriate categorles of property, plant and equipmant when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assals, on the same basis as other property 8ssets, commences when fhe assats are ready for their intended vse.

Deprecialion is recognised so as 1o write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residus|
values over their usaful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and deprecialion method are roviewed
at tna end of each reporting pedad, with the effect of any changes in estimata accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held undar finance leases are depraciated over their expactad useful lives on the same basis a5 owned assets, However, when there is

no reasonabla cerainty that ownership will be obtalned by the end of the lease term, assels are dgprecisted ovar the shorter af the lease term
and their useful lives. Iﬁp
Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: __T/

Buildings (Freehold) BO years l.'llr)v %a_r-- e

Plant and Medical Egulpment T7-13 yaars i o —

Surgical Instruments 3 yaars "'frff

Office Equipment - Onhers 5 yaars

Ciffice Equipment - Computers 3 yaars

“ehicles i years
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An item of properly, plant and equipment is derecognised upan disposal or when no future scenomic benefits are axpecied to arse from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain of 028 arising on the dispesal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is dalermined as
the differanca botween the sales proceeds and the camying amaunt of the assetand is recognised in profit of loss.

Far transition 1o Ind AS, the company has confinued with the carylng value of all of its propery, plant and equipment recognisad as of April 1,
2015 (transition date) measurad as per the previcus GAAF and use that carrying valua as its deamed cost as of the fransition date
accordingly, certain pre-operative costs have been charged off upon transiticn,

3101 Intanglble assets

3,10.2 Intangible assets acquired an a Standalone basls
Intangible assets wilh finile useful lives that are acquired on a Standalone basis are camied al cost less aceurmmulated amartisatlon and
accumulated impairment losses. Amorlisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, The estimatad useful life
and amorisation method are reviewed at the and of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimata being accounted forona
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired on & Standalone basis are caried at cost less accumulated
Impairment losses.

3.10.3 Derecognition of intangible assels
An Intangible asset is derscognised on disposal, or when no future eranomic benefits are axpected from use or disposal Gaing or losses
arlzing from derecognition of an intangible assat, measured as the diffarence between the net disposal proceads and the carrying amount of
tha asset. are recegnised In profit or loss whan the asset is derecognised.

3.10.4 Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated usaful llvas of the intangible assots are as follows:
In the case of spacial software devsioped, the company has a policy of defining capilalization based an perod of rests. The company is
adepting a policy 1o amortize such capitalization in three years.

[Computar Software |3 years |

3.10.5 Impalrment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and inlangible assets to datermine whather there
iz any indication that those assels have suffered an impairment loss, If any such indication exisis, the recoverabla amount of the assel is
estimatad In order to detarming the extent of the impairment loss {if any), When it Is not possibie 1o estimate the racoverabla amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset balongs, When a reasonable
and consistent hasis of alocation can be idantified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generaling units, or otharwise they
are allocatled to tha smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and canslstent aliocation basls can be identified.

Imangible asseis with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yal avallable for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Racoverable amount is tha higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assassing value in use, tha estimaled future cash
flaws are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflacts curment market assessments of the time vales of money
and the risks spacific 1o the asset for which the estimates of fulure cash flows have not been adjustad

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-genarating unily is estimated to ba less than its camying amount, the carying amount of the
assel (or cash-generating unity s reduced to its recoverabla amount. An impairment loss is racogniged immeadiately in profit or loss.

When an impaiment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assel {or a cash-generaling unit) is increased 10 the revised
petimate of its recovarable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amaount that would have been
determined had na impalrment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-ganaraling unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediataly in profit or loss,

3.1 Inventories
The invenlores of all medicines, medicara Hems traded and deall with by the Company are valued al cost. In the sbsence of any further
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make fhe sale, the Mel Realisable Value is not applicatie. Cost of these
inventories comprizes of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to fheir present location after adjusting for
GST wharevar applicable. applying the FIFD mathod.

Stock of provislons, stores (including lab materials and other consumablas), siationeries and housekeeping items are stated at cost, Tha net
realisabla value s not applicable in the absence of any further medification/aiteration before being consumed in-house only. Cost of these
inventores somprises of all costs of purchase and olher costs incurred in bringing the inventeres to their present lacation, after adjusting for
GST wherevar applicable applying FIFD method.

Linan, crackery and outlery are valued at cost and wiltten off apphying FIFC methad. The net realisable valua is et applicabls in the abeence of
any further modification/alteration before belng consumed in-house. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in Bringing he Inventories 1o their present location,

Imported invenlories are acsounted for al the applicable exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction,

3.12 Provisions
Frovisions are recognised when the Cempany has a present obligation {legal or construclive) as a result of a past event, It |s probable that the
Company will ba required to settle the ebligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
The amount recognised as a provision s tha best estimate of the consideration reguired to setile the present obligation at the end of tha
reporting periad, faking into acsount the risks and unsertalnties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using th Eﬁ@ﬁﬁ:x\

esfimatad to sefila tha present cbligation, its carrying amount |s the present uaP.Te of those cash flows (whean the effect of th im}i/fl&lu&-ﬁ-
meney is material), . R
LI
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When some ar all of the economic barefits required 1o settle a provision are expacled lo be recoverad from a third party, a receivable is
recognized as an assel f it is vittually cerain that reimbursement will be received and the amounl of the receivable can be measured reliably,

3.12.1 Other Provisions
Other provisions (ncluding third-party payments for malpractios claims) which are not covered by insurance and oiher costs for lagal claims are
recognized based on legal opinions and managermen! judgment.

3.13 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial labillies are recognised when a Company entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrurments.

Financial assats and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair valee, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
lssue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass) are added
1o or deducted from the fair value af the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, an Inilal recognition. Transaclion costs directly
anributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financlal labilities at fair value through profit of loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

3.14 Financlal assats
All reguiar way purchases or sales of financial assels are recognised and derecognised on fair value basis. Regular way purchasas or safes are
purchases or saleg of financial assels thal require delivary of assets within the fime frame established by regulation or conventian in the
marketplace,

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their antirety at sither amortised cost or faif value. depending on the classification
of the financial assels

3.14.1 Classification of financlal assets

Dbt instruments that meat the fallowing conditions are subsequenty measured at amortised cost {except for debt Instruments that are
deslgnated as at fair value through profit or ioes on inltial recogniiion):

tha asset is held within @ business maodel whosea objactive |5 to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on speclfied dates fo cash flows thal are selaly payments of principal and interest on the
princlpal amount outstanding.
For the impairmant palicy on financial assets measured at amorisad cost, refor Note 3.14.3
Debt instrumants thal meet the following conditions are subsequartly measured at fair value through othar comprehensive insome (axcept for
debt instrumants that are designated as at fair valua through profit or loss on initial recognition):

the assel is hald within a business model whose ohjective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flews and selling financial assats,

tha contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and intarest on the
principal amount cutstanding.
Imerest income ls recognised in profit or loss for FYTOCI debl instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FYTOC! debt instruments are freated as financial assets moasured at amortized cost. Thus, tha exchange differences on the amortised
cost are recognised In profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FYTOCH financial assels are recognized in other comprahansive
income and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for dabl instiuments through other comprebensiva income'. \When tha investment 2
disposad of, the cumulative gain or ioss previously accumulated in this reserve 1s reclassified to profit or loss.

3.14.2 Effective interost method
The effactive interest mathod is a method of catculating the amortised cost of a debt instiument and of allocating interast income over the
relevant perind, The effactiva infarest rate is the rata that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts {including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effacliva inlarest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the axpacted life of
the debt instrument, or, where apprapriate, a sherter period, to the net carrying ameunt on inifial recognitien.

Income is recognised on an effective intarest basis for debt Instruments cther than those financial assols classified as at FVTPL Interest
income is recognised in profit or Ioss and is Includad in the “Other income” ling item,

3.14.3 |mpairment of financial assats

The Company appiles the expecled credil loss maodel for recognising impairment loss on financial assels messured at amortised cost. debt
instrumants al EVTOC, lease receivables, trade receivables, othar contractual rights 1o reselve cash or other financial assel. and financial
guaraniges nol designated as at FYTPL,

Expected credit ingses are fhe weighted average of credit lnsses with the respectiva isks of default cocurring as the weights. Credit loss is fhe
difference between all contraciual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all tha cash fiows that the
Company expacls to receive (i.e. all cash shorifalls), discounted at the original effective inlarest rate (or credit-adjusted effective Interest rale
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by consldering all contractual terms of the
financial instrumant (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of thal financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowanca for & financial instrument at an ameunt equal 1o the lifetime expected cradit lossas if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since inifial recognition. 1f tha credil risk on a financial instrument has nat increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financlal instrument at an amount agqual te 12-manth
expected credit losses 12-month expacted credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represant tha lifatime cash
shortfalis that will result if default noours within the 12 months affer the reportling date and thus, are not cash shorffalls that are predicted over
the next 12 months.,

If the Company measured loss allewanca for a financial instiument al lifetime expected credit foss model in the previous pericd, but determines
at the end of a reparting perod that the credit risk has nol increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit i
compared to the pravious perad, the Company again measures the lass allowan
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Whan making the assessment of whather there has bean a significant increase In cradit risk since [nifial recagnition, the Company uses e
change in the risk of a default ocouring cver the expected life of the financial instrumant instead of tha change in the amount of expectad credit
l6sses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the ek of a default occurnng on the financial Instrument as at the reporing date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initlal recegnition and considers reasonable and supportable
informatian. that |3 available withaut undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in crodit risk since initial recognition,

For trade raceivables or any contractual right 1o receive cash or ancther financial assat that result fram transactions that are within the scope of
ind AS 115, fha Company always measuras the i0ss allowance al an amount equal ta lifelime expecled cradit losses.

Further, for lhe purpese of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for Irade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, This expactad credit Ioss allowanca Is computed based on a provision matrix which lakes into
account historical credit loss experiance and adjusted for forward-looking infarmation,

The impairment requirements for the recognifion and measurement of 8 loss allawance are equally applied lo debl instrumants at FWTOC!
axcept that tha loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is net reduced from the carrying amournit In the balance sheet.

3.14.4 Derecognition of financlal assets
The Company derecognises a financial assel whan the contragtual righls 10 the cash flows from the assel éxpire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to ancther party, If the Company neither fransfers nor
retaings substantially 2l the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 1o control the transfered asset, the Company recognises its retainad
interast in the assel and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. if the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
pwharship of & transfarred financial asset, he Company confinues Lo recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
korrowing for the proceeds received

On derecognition of a financial assel in lis entirely, the differance between the aszel's carrying amount and the sum of the considaeration
received and recivable and the curnulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehenslve income and accumulatad in eguity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have atherwise been recognised in profit or Ioss on disposal of that financial assat.

On darecognition of & financlal asset other than In its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains en option to repurchase pan of a transferred
asset], the Company allocates the previous sarylng amount of tha financial asset between the par it continues to resognize under cantinuing
involvernent, and the part it ne longer recognises on the basis af the relative fair values of those parts on the dale of the transfer. The
difference hetwean the carrying amount allocated to the par that is no longer recognised and 1he sum af the consideration received for the part
no longer recagnised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated 10 @ that had hean recognised in ather comprehensive income is recogrisad in
profit or loss if such gain or loss would have othenwise been racognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset, & cumulative gain or
joes that had been recognised in olher comprehensive income is allecated between the pari that continues to be recagnised and tha pan that is
na longer recognised on the basis of tha relative fair values of thoee parts,

3.16 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financlal assets denominated in a forsign curancy |s determined in that forsign currancy and franslated at the spot rale at the
end of each repoiting period

Far fareign currency denominated financial assets maasured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss axcept for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a hadging relaticnship.

Changes in the camying amount of investments in equity instiumants at FVTOC! relating to changes in foreign currency rates are
recogniged in other compiehansive income.

For the purposes of rasagnizing foreign exchange gains and losses, EVTOC| debt instriumaents are reatad as financial aszotz measured at
amortised cost, Thus, ihe eschange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or less and ather changes in the fair valua of
FuTOC! financial assets are recognised in othar comprehensive income.

3,16 Financial labllities and equity Instruments

3.16.1 Classification as dobt or equity
Oebt and equity instrumants issued by a Company entity are classified as aithar financial liahilties or as equity In accordance with e
substanca of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liakitity and an equity instrument,

3.16.2 Equity instruments
An equity instrument js any contract that evidences a residual Interest in the assels of an enfity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equily
insiruments issued by a Company entily are recognised at tha proceads received, nat af direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. Mo gain or loss is recognized in profil or
joss on the purchasa, sale. issue or cancalialion of the Company's own aguity instruments.

3.16.3 Financial liabllities
All financial liabilitias are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective inferest method or at FWTPL.
However, financial labllities that arise when a transfer of a financial assat does net qualify for derecagnition or whan the confinuing invalvement
approach applies, financial guaraniee confracts issued by the Company, and commitments issuad by the Company to provide a loan at below-
market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out halow.

4.16.4 Financial liabilitles subsequently measurad at amortised cost
Einancial llabilities that are nol held-far-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently maasured at amartisad cost are determined based on the
affactive interest methad. Interest axpense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an assal s included in the "Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of caloulating the amortised cost of a financlal llability and of allocating interest expense over {he
ralevant pericd, The effective inlerast rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated fulure cash payments (insluding all fees and points p;id‘f’l_'.._“-m\
or received that form an integral part of the effective interast rale, ransaction costs and clhar premiums or discaunts) through the expeclat[llﬁﬁj?:‘r_ ]
of the financial liability, or {where appropriate) a shorer periad, to the net carrying amaunt@n inltial recognition, /e
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All amaounts are in Rupeas unless alnoenvise statad

3.18.5 Forelgn exchange gainz and lossas

3.16.6

317,

31474

317.2

Far financial liabilities that are denaminated in a foreign currency and are measured al amorised cost at the end of each reporing period. the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amorised cost of the instrumaents and are recognised in ‘Other income’,

The fair value of financial labilities denominated in a fareign curency is deftermined In that foreign currency and Lranslated at the spot rate al
the end of the repoding period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FYTPL, the foreign exchangs companent forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financlal llabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the ariginal
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liahility, Similary, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
{whethier or not atlibutable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is ascounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability, The difference betwaan the carrying amount of the financial liabillty derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable |5 recognised in profit or lnss,

Ind AS 118 Loasos:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 118, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace tha axlsting leases Standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and related lntarpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
laazes for both parties 1o & contract Le., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires &
lazsee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying assel is of low value.
Currently, cperating lease expenses are chargad to the statement of Profit & Loss, The Standard also contains enhanced disclosurs
requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantfially carries forward the lessor accounfing requiremants in Ind AS 17,

Tha effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 iz annual periods beginning on or after April 1. 2018, The standard parmits two possible methods
of transition.

» Full retrospective — Ratrospectively Lo each prior period presented applying Ind A3 8 Accounting Policias, Changes in Accounting Estimatas
and Errors

« Modified retrospective — Reliospectively, with the cumulative effect of Inlially applying the Standard recognized at the date of inital
application.

Under maodified retrospactive approach, the lesses records the lease liability a5 the prasent value of the remaining lease payments, discountad
at tha incremental borowing rate and the right of use asset either as;

s Its carrying amount a5 if the standard had bean applled since the commencement date, bul discounted at lessee's incremental bemowing rata
al the date of initial application ar

« &n amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related o that lease recognized
under Ind A% 17 immediately before tha date of initial application.

Cartain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

Jn completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing 1o use the "Modifiad Retrcspective Approach’ for
transitioning to Ind A5 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to refained earnings, on the date of initial application {April 1. 2018)
Acrordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2012 will not be retrospectively adjusied. The Company has elected certain availabla
practical expedients on transiion.

The affact of adaplion as on transition date would be insignificant on the financlal stalements.

Ind A% 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Incoms Tax Treatments:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Unecertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is te be
applied whila performing the determination of taxable profit (or foss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax cradils and tax rates, whan there
is ungertainty over income lax treatments under Ind AS 12 According fo the appendix, companies need to detarmine the probatility of the
relevant tax authority accepling each tax treatment. or group of tax treatments, that the companles have used or plan to use in their incoeme tax
filing which has o be considerad fa compute the most lkely amount or the expected value of the tax reatment when detarmining laxable profii
(lax losg), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused ax credits and tax rates.

The standard permils two possible mathods of transition - 1) Full retrozpective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied
retrospectively 1o each prior reparting period prasented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies. Changas in Accouniing Estimates
and Errors, without using hindsight and 11y Retrespectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recagnized by adjusting equity
an inifial application, withoul adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adeption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C iz annual periods beginning on or after Apdl 1, 2019,
The company is in the process of evaluation of impact of such pronouncement,

Amendmant to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes:
On March 30. 2019, Ministry of Corporale Affairs issued amandmenls to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', in connection with
accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendmant clarifigs that an entity shall recagnize the income fax consequeancas of dividands in profit or loss, other comprahensive income
or aguity according to where the entity ariginally recognized those past transactions or avanis.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual perad baginning on or aftgr Aprl 1, 2019, The Company i curently evaluating the
effect of this amendmeant )




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
MNotes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
All ameunts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

3.17.3 Amendment to Ind AS 18 = plan amendment, curtallment or settlement:
an March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendmenis to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits', In connection with accounting for plan
amendmenis, curaiiments and setilements.

The amendments reguire an entity:

+ lo use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and nad Interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtalimant or settlement; and

« to recognize In profit o loss as parl of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was
nat previously recognized becauze of the impact of the assel ceiling.

Effective date for application of thizs amendment is annual period beginning on or after Apnl 1, 2019
The company i in the process of evaluation of impact of such proncuncements.

Historical Cost convention

The financial stalements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain assets and liabililies as stated
in the respective policies, which have been measured at fair value.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In tha application of the Company's accounting paliclas, which are described In note 3, the directors of the Company are required to maka
judgements, estimates and assumplions aboeul the carrying amounts of assats and liabilities that are not readily apparent frem other sources,
Tha estimates and asscclated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevani, Actual
resulls may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the pariod
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pariod, ar In the period of the revision and future pericds if the revision affacts
poth eurrent and fulure periods.

4.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of ihe reparting panod
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,

4.2 Usaful llves of property, plant and equlpment
Az described 8t 3.10 above, the Company reviews the esfimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each repering
peried, During the current year, the directors determined that the useful lives of certain tems of equipment should ba shortenad, due 1o
developments in tachnalogy.

4.3 Fair valug measurements and valuation processes
Same of tha Company's assets and lablities are measurad at fair value for financial repering purposes. The business acquisitions made by
the company are alse accounied at falr values. The board of directors of tha Company has set up a valeation committee, which is headed up
by the Chief Financial Officer of tha Cempany, 1o determina the appropriate valuation techrnigues and Inputs for fair value measuremeants.,

In estimating the fair value of an assel or a lahility, the Company uses markel-ochservabie data to the extent it is available. Where Laval 1
inputs are not availabla, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The managemant works closaly with the
qualified external valuers 1o establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model, The Chief Financial Officer raports the
findings to tha hoard of directors of the Company every year to explain fhe cause of Aluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities,

4.4 Employee Benefits
The cost of defined benefit plans are determined wsing actuardal waluatlons. The actuanal valuation Invalves making assumplions about
discount rates, expected rates of refurn on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pansion increases. Due to the long-tem
nature of these plans, such estimates are subject 1o significant uncerainty, Further details ara given in nofa 32

4.5 Litigations

The amount recognised as a provigion shall ba fhe best estimate of the expenditure required to setfle the present obiigation arising at tha
reporting perod

4.6 Revenue Recognition
Revenue from fees charged for inpatient and cutpatient haspilakclincial sarvices rendared to insurad and corporate patients are sublect to
approvals for the insurance companies and corporates. Accordingly, the Company estimates tha amounis likaly to ba disallowad by such
companies based on past trends.

Estimations based on past trends are alzo required in determining the value of consideration from customers {a be allocatad to award credits
far custamers.

4.7 Basic Earnings Per Shara:
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
The prafil or loss fram the continuing cperations attributabie Lo the parent entity.

By the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the financial year,
Diluted Eamings Per Share:

Diiuted sarnings par share is calculated by dividing:
The profit or loss fram the continuing cperations attributabie to the parent entity,
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4.8 Current versus Non Currant classification

The Company presenis assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current clazsification.
An assetis treated as current when it is:
Expectad 10 be realised orintended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Expectad {0 be realised within twelve months after the reporting perod, or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or usad to settle a liabllity for at lzast twalve manths after the reparting
period

All other assets are classified as non-currant.
A llability is corrant whern:
It is expectad to ba seltled in normal oparating cycle
It is due o ha setfied within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the setitement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporing period
The Company claseifies all other lishilifies as non-current.
Deferred fax assats and liabilitias are classified as non-curent assets and liabilities
Tha aparating cycle is tha time betwean the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has idenfified twalve months as its operating cycle.

4.9 Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash eguivalant in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and an hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of thrae

manths or less, which are subject te an insignificant risk of changes in vatua,

4,10 Bad Debts Policy
Tha Coempany is following a hybrid method with respect 1o the policy on bad debts. The company evaluates the debtors on an average on a monfhly basis

fo arrive at 8 possibla figure of defining bad debis hased on the Expected Credit Loss method, The company based on the net value afier this analysis
faliows the following basis for bad debts policy,

Tha Board of Directors approves the Bad Debt Policy, on the recommendaticn of the Audit Committee, afler the reviaw of deblars every year.

Tha standard palicy for write off of bad dabis is as given below subject to managament inputs on the collectability of the same,

| _Ageing Expocted Credit loss (%)
Within the credit peried il
Less than 6 menths past due 0%
& months to 12 months past dus 12.50%
1to 2 years past dug 30%
2 to 3 years years past due 50%
=3 years past due 100% ,.-.

il
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apolle Hospitals International Limited

Notes ta the Standalone financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2018

All amaunts are in Rupees except for eamings per share information

Intangibla Azsets

Other intangible Assets

31-Mar-18

21-Mar-18

Carrying amounts af :
Capitalised development
Computer software

Mon compete Fee
Trademarks

Others

2,628,496

796,264

2,628,498

796,264

Computer
Software

Hon-Compete
Fees

Other Intangible

Taotal

Cost

Balance as at 01 April, 2017

Additions from Standalone asguisitions
Additians through business combination
Additions from internal developmants
Disposals or classified as held for sala
Others [decibe)

Balance as at 31 March, 2018

Balance as at 01 April, 2018

Additions from Standalone acguisitions
Additions thraugh business combinatian
Additions fram internal developmeants
Disposals or classified as held for sale
Others {decriba)

Balance as at 31 March, 201%

Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance as at 1 April, 2017

Amortisation expanse for the year

Disposals or classified as held for sale

Impairmant losses recagnised ( (Reversed) in Statement aof Profit
and Loss

Reversals of impairmant lasses recagnised in prafit or loss
Others [daescribe]

Balance as at 31 March, 2018

Balance as at 01 April, 2018

Amaortisation expense for the year

Disposals or classified as held for sale

Impairment losses recoghised ! (Reversed) in Staternent of Prafit
and Loss

Reversals of jmpairment losses recognisad in profit or loss
Othara [describa]

Balance as at 31 March, 2019

15,456 865
232,200

15,456,865
232,200

15,689,065

15,689,065
3,234 857

15,689,065

15,689,065
3,234,657

18,923,722

14,480,882
411,919

18,823,722

14,480,882
411,919

14,892 801

1,402,425

14,892,801

1,402,425

16,256,226

16,285,226
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MNotes to the Standalone financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2018
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7 Investments In subsidiaries &associates

7.1 Break-up of investments in subsidiaries & associates

Particular Az at March 31, 2018 Az ai March 31, 2018
aTY Amounts® QTY Amounts®

Cuoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Eguity Instruments 5 5 + =

Total Aggregate Quoted Investments (A} - - - -

Unguoted Investments (all fully paid)

Apolle CWVHF Limited 10,000,000 251,245 800 8.790,037 201,000,000
Apatlo-Amrish Oncolegy Sarvices Pyl Lid 1,855,000 33,350,000 1,855,000 33,350,000
Total Aggregate Unguoted Investments (B) 11,865,000 284,586,800 10,645,037 234,350,000
Total Investmants Carrying Value (A} + (B) 11,855,000 284,586 800 10,648,037 234,350,000

Aggregate book valua of quoted investments .
Aggregate market value of quoled investments -
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted invesiments - £
Aggregate amount of impalment in value of investments in associalas . i

7.2 Details of material associates
Details of each of the Company's matenal associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

Mame of associate Principal Activity  Place of Proportion of ownership interast [
Incorporation end voting
principal place af rights held by the Company
business
As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pt Lid Healthcare ahmedabad 50.0% 50.0%
Apclo CYHE Limited Healthcare Ahmedabad B5.7% £0.5%

Al of the above asscciales are accounted for veing tha equity method In these Standaione financial statemants.

7.3 Summarised financial information of material associates and Subsidary
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Company’s material associales is sef out below.

The summarlsad financial iInformation below represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind ASs
adjusted by tha Company for equily accounting purposes,

Ag at As at
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Lid 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Mon-currant assats 88,753,632 104,107 458
Current assats 148,336,297 141,847,030
Mon-current liabilities 88,584,215 97,013,577
Current liabilitias 05110013 321,550,645
Reyanue 418 623,951 304315912
Profit or Ioss from continuing cperations 12,858 333 [23,178.415)
Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinuad operations - -
Profit {loss) for the year 12,850,333 (23,178,415)
Cther comprehensive income for the year (204 B40) (61,514)
Total comprehensive income for the year 12 654 493 123,239,829)
Dividends received from the associate during the year - -
As at Az at
Apollo CWHF Limited 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Men-currant assats 375,855,380 11:3.955, 680
Current assels 20,266,396 115,367,957
Mon-current liabilives 175,367,458 15,369,423
Current liabitities 46,779,466 12,457,761
Reveanuz 22,419,128 4,510,353
Profit or loss from continuing cparalions (77,734,411} (42768817
Fost-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - -
Frafit {less) for the year {77 734411 [42 TEE BT
Cither comprehensive income for the year c: %
Total comprehensive income for the year ot - {77,734 411) (42,768,517
Dividends received from the associate during the year i )- II f,’{-' : ;
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Trade recelvables

J1-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Man Current Current Hon Current Current

Trade raceivables
Secured, considerad good -
Unsecured, considered good - 480,958,090 - 442 BBA 706
Unsecured, considered doubiful ; .
Secured, considerad doubtiul

Allowance for doubtful debts (expecied credit loss allowanca) - (30,012,943} - (17,118,165)
Allawance for disallowancas (expected cradil loss allowance) -+ (14,284 822} - (132,203, 254;
- 436,661,326 - 412,348,288

i, Confirmations of balances from Debtors, Craditors are yel to be received In a few cases though the Company has sant letters of confirmation to therm
The balances adopted are as appearing in the books of accounts af the Comparny.

i, Sundry Debtors represant the dabt outstanding en sale of pharmaceutizal products, hospital services and project consultancy fees and is considerad
good, The Company holds no othar securities other than the parsonal security of the debtors,

ji, Advances and deposits represent the advances recovarabla In eash or in kKind or for value to be realisad. The amounis of these advances and deposits
are considered good for which the Company halds no sacurity ather than the perzenal secunty of the debtars

8.1 Trade recelvables
Majority of the Company's transaclions are eamed in cash or cash equivalents. The trade recelvables compnse mainly of recaivables from Insurance
Companies. Corporate customers and Govemment Undertakings, The antity's exposure to credit rlsk in relation to trade receivables is low.
The average credit perod on sales of sarvicas is 30-60 days from fhe date of the Invaice.
The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for receivables axcluding Group Company and Tanzania, A
direct confirmation ie obtained from Tanzania Government confirming the Receivable amount outstanding, The provision maftrix takes into account
historical credit loss experience and is adjustad for forward looking informatien. The expected credit loss aliowance 18 based on the ageing of the days the
receivables are due and tha rates as given in the provision malirix, The pravision matrix at the and of the reporting period is as follows:
Mo single customer represents 10% or mare of the company's total revenua during fhe year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2018, Therefora the
customer cencentration risk is imited due to the large and unrelated customer base,
Ageing Expected Cradit loss (%)
As at As at
March 31, 2019 31st March, 2018
Within the credit peried e =
Less than B months past dus 0.00% 0.00%
& menths to 12 menths past due 12.80% 12.50%
1 to 2 years past due 30.00% 30.00%
2 to 3 years years past due 50.00% 50.00%
=3 years past due 100.00% 100.00%
Year ended Year ended
Movament in the expected credit loss allowance 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
Balance al baginning of the year (30,321 419) {19,759 433
Movement in expected credit losz allowance on trade recelvablas calcutatad at lifetima expactad credit losses 113,976, 348) (10,561 928)
Balance at end of the year {4,287 T6S5) [30,321,419)
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated,
9 Other Financial Assels 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
MNon Current Current Non Currant Current
Security depasits 14,787,930 = 14,350,286 -
Operating lease receivable - 3,555,729 - 2 4584 381
Prepald Rant 50,071,780 - 50,351,511 -
€4,859,710 3,595,729 64,710,797 2,484,381
10 Inventories As at As @t \
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 ]
ay Inventores (lower of cost and net realisable val 1 TH
I
it /m] WATHA, 1»’ e 6,437,265 11,209,362 N / i
Lab materials & Other Consumatles ,.-"(\* BN \. 26,271,033 B4, 548,104 I." }lql o
ri
32,708,299 75,057 466 L!I/ -

\
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Wotes to the Standalone financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2019

{Amaunts in INR Rupees unless clherwise stated)

11.1 Cash and cash egquivalents

Far tha purposes of ihe Standalone statemant of cash fows cash and cash equavalents clisde cash on hand and in banka. Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of
the repariing pericd as shown in the Standslane staternent af cash flaws can be recancikad to the refated items in the Standalone balance sheet as foliows!

Chegues, drafls on hand & escrow afs.

Cash on hand

Courrent Account

Feraign Cumrency in hand

Cash and cash equivalanis as pear balance shaet

Cash and bark balances Inciuged in a disposal Company held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents as per Standalone statement of cash flows

11.2 Bank balances other than (nate no, 11.1) above

Balances with Banks
Earmarked balances wilh banks {unpald devidend)
Earmarked balances with banks {Mhars)
Balances with banks 1o the extent hald ag margin manay
Other bank balances

12 Other Assels

Prepad Expenses
Other Advances & Currenl Assaels

13 Current Tax Assets {Met)
TDS Recelvabbe
Advance Tax
Less  Proviaion for Tax
TOTAL

As at As at
31 -Mar-19 31-Mar-18
46 476,627 24.453,158
3,201,551 2 603,534
22221798 24 570 810
- 143 834
T1.809.975 51771137
71,899,975 51,771,137
As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
9,548,478 12614 248
9,548 476 12,534,246
31-Mar-19 3-Mar-18
MNon Current Current Mon Current Currant
10,352,500 - 11,688,757
- 130,268,081 - 108805777
2 140,620,581 121,484,534
-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
234 256 4BT 149, 850 497
165,963, 264) (27 818 400
164,293,223 122,032,087
p
r.
y M-‘:-----'
f'-' ---




Apallo Hospitals International Limited
Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
rAmounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise staled)

14 Equity Share Capital

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Equity share capital

Authorised Share capital :

10,87,50, 000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each

10,87.50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Previous Year as
at 31st March, 2018)

11,04.000 Preference Shares of Re 10/ each

11,004,000 Preference Shares of Rs 10/~ each [Previous Year as
at 31st March, 2018

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
10,06,03,068 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
10.06,03,068 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

1,087, 500,000

11,040,000

1,008,020 680

1,087,500,000

11,040,000

1,006,020 8580

1,006,030,680

1,006,030 680

14.1 Fully paid eguity shares

Balance at March 31, 2017
Shares Issued during the year
Balance at March 31, 2018
Shares Issued during the period

Mumber of shares Share capital
{Amount}
85,603,068 856,030,680
15,000,000 150,000,080
100,603,068 1,006,030,680
100,603 068 1,006,030 680

Balance at March 31, 2018

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of Bs.10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends,
The fair value of shares issued for consulting services was determined by reference to the market rate for similar cansulting services.

The shares bought back in the current year were cancelled immediately.
14.2 Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates
Particulars

Az at March 31, 2018

Apolio Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominess
Subsidiaries of the holding company
Associates of the holding company

Az at March 31, 2019

Apolle Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominees
Subsidiares of the holding company
Associates of the holding company

14.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder helding more than 5% shares
As at March 31, 2018

Number of shares

20,340 266

30,340,268

Share capital

303,402 660

303,402,660

As at March 31, 2018

Mumber of % holding of

Mumber of

% holding of

Shares held equity shares Shares held equity shares

Fully paid equity shares

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominecs 30,240,266 30%
Apollo Home Healthcare India Ltd & its nomineses 18,961,265 20%
IRM Trust & its nominees 50,301 531 S0%,
16 Other equity

MNote
Secunties pramium reserve 151
Retained sarnings 15.2
Other Comprehensive Incorme 15.3

Ind AS Transition Reserve

30,340,266 0%
19,051,265 20%
50,301,531 B0%%
As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
444 033,295 444 033,285
(288 369.692) (411,227 965)
5,211,368 4 580, 356
16,411 817 18,411,817
176,286 B0% 55,797 515




Apolio Hospitals International Limited

MNotes to the Standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

[Amaounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

15.1 Securities premium reserve

Balance at beginning of year (Secunties premium resenve)

EBalance at end of year

15.2 Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of year
Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Balance at end of year

15.3 Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at beginning of year
Mowvernent in OCI{Net) during the year
Balance at end of year

16 Borrowings

16.1

Unsecured - at amortised cost
Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Secured - at amortised cost
(i) Term loans

from banks (Refer note (vi) below)
(i) Loans repayable on demand

Total

As at As at
3M-Mar13 31-Mar-18
444 033,205 444 033,285
444 033,295 444 (33,205
As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
(411,227, 9645) {495,3859.918}
121,858,273 84,161,854
(289, 380 692} (411,227 B55)
As at As at
31-Mar-13 3-Mar-18
4,560 368 (1,663,130
531,021 5,243,498
5,211,389 4 580 368

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Non Current Current Mon Current Current
136 800,745 - 130,272,000 -
308,937,911 - 430 878 368 -

- 71,135 485 - 70,126,185
445 738 656 71.135 455 A61,150,368 TO26 185

Summary of borrowing arrangements
{i) Redeemable Preference shares were amendad in 2016-2017 for a cumulative non -discretionary dividend of 8% per annum. These
redesmabie praferenca shares do not contain any equity component.

{ii} The terms of repayment of term loans and other loans are stated below,

As atMarch 31,2019

Farticluars Princlpal Principal
Outstanding as at Outstandingas  Termsof  Rateofinterast 31 Rate of Interest 31
Met March, 2019 al Mst  repayment Mar 149 Mar 18
March, 2018
Yes Bank 166,334,240 235,821,007 As per the fied 0,95% 0.40%
fepaymant aver
Years
Yes Bank 100,177 895 100,177 B85 As per the fixed 8.%3% 9.35%
repaymert over B
Years
HOFC Bank 144 000,000 216.000,000 Ag par the fived 10.20% 9.75%
repayment over 2
YEars

(I} The Company has avaied Twoe Rupee Term Loans of s 310 milion and INR 100,10 Mio from YES Bank Limited, which are
rapayahis in thirty siy quarterly instalments, commencing fram 2600 Mar-13 and 24th Jwi-17 respectively. The lnans are secured by
firsf pani passu charge on all present and fulure movable and immovable fived assets of the company along with minimum cover of 1.78
limes the value of the owlsfanding considering movable & immovablo assets {subject to 1.5 Hmes cover considering immoyable
assals), The company repaid Fe 50 49 milion during the current fnancial vear 18-19.

fif} The Company has Rupee Term Loans of Rs 409 50 milion fram HDFC Bank Limited, which are repayable in 28 quarferly
instalments, commencing from 2nd Mar 2015 The loans are secured by firsl pari passd charge on all present and future movable and
immaovalie fived assels of the company alang with minimpm cover of 1.75 fimes the valve of the oufstanding considering movable &
immovable assels The company repaid Rs 72 00 million during the curren Fn&ncaaj' yesr 18-18.
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Hotes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

17 Other financial liabilities

Mon-current

a) Interast accrued

by Current maturities of long-term debts
c} Security Deposits

Total

18 Provisions

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2018

Maon Current Current Mon Current Current
g 3,660,247 i 4,450,700
P 114,370,000 - 119,801,026
1,819,586 - 1,794,566 -
1,819,586 123,030,247 1,794 586 124,261,726

As at March, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Non Current Current Non Current Current
Employes bensfits 18,317,887 10,902,372 18,066,053 12,253,505
Total 18,317 987 10,802,372 18,066,053 12,253,505
18 Deferred tax balances As at As at
IM-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Deferrad Tax Assets 124,888,743 213,858 468
Deferred Tax Liabilities {110,021, 523) (138,747,772}
MAT Credit Entitlernent 68,140 155 45 905,292
Total 103,008,376 123,115,988
For the period ended on 31st March, 2019
Particulars / Details of Deferred tax balances Opening Balance Recognised In Recognised in Recognised Closing Balance
Profit or Loss other directly In equity
comprehensive
incoma
Praperty Planl and Equipment (136,747 771 26,726,248 - (110,021,523)
Financial assets at Amortized Cost 1,338,303 (572,837 - TH3, 3668
Othars Aszats 13,155,813 (11.817,987) - 1,337,814
Ratiremant Benefit Plans (4,063,700} 10,751,584 299,245 8,977,140
Businesa Loas carried forward under Income Tax 201 517.042 (98,172,377 - 102,444 6685
Provisian for doubiiul debis 8,512 415 6,203,574 13,015,989
Financial liabilities at Amaorlized Cost (4,888, 504) 5,340,175 - . 350,671
Tatal - A 77,120,696 (62,511,721) 259,248 - 14,668,221
Minimum Alternata Tax Cradit (B} 45,096,202 42,144, 864 3,140,158
Total "C= {(A+E) 123,115,968 (20,366 B5T} 259,246 - 103,008,277

2017-18

Particulara

Opening Balance

Recognised in

Recognised in Recognised Closing Balance

Profit or Loss other directly in equity
comprahansive
Ineome
Froparty Plant and Equipmant (140,322,303} 3,574,531 - - {136 747,771}
Financial assets at Amorized Cost 1,532.928 2,875 5 - 1,336,303
Others Assets 14,987 538 {1,831,527) - - 13155812
Ratirament Benafit Flans (B47,353) - (3,215,347 - [4.0683.700)
Businass Loss camead forward under Income Tax 248 701,311 (47 064, 260} - - 201 617042
Provision for doubtful deats 3,158,182 3,654,223 - - 8812415
Financial liabilities at Amortized Gost (3,855 065) [1,134,435)} - - 4,968 504)
Total - A 123,154,645 142,817,602} [3,216,347) L 77,120,698
Minimum Altarnate Tax Credit (B) 18,176,892 27,818,400 - - 45 905 202
Total {"C)= (A+B} 141,331,537 (14,963, 202) [3,216,347) - 123,416,983

[

Ui
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Trade Payables

Trage Payabla-BMSME
Trace payables - Oiner than MSME
Total

(I} The average credil period on purchases of goods ranges from
immediate paymeants o credit perod of days

[ue te Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises

Pariculars

The amounts ramaining unpaid to micre and small suppliars as at the and of the year

- Principal
= Irtereat
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act

Tha amount of paymants mada to micre ard small suppliars beyond the appointed cay during the accaunting
year

The amount of interest due and payvabie for the pencd of delay in making payment iwhich have been paic out
beyord the appointad day during tha year) but without adding tha interest specified under the MSMED Act

The ampunt of intarest accrued ard remaining unpaid &t the end of each accounting year

The amcunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlll such date when the
Interest dues as above are actually paid to tha small enterprisa for the purposa of disaliowance as a deductible
expanditure under the MEMED Aot

Cher current llabilithos

(@) Revenue recesved 0 advance
Deferred revenue arizing from government grant
(B) Amaunt dus to customers
(o} Statutary Dues
(d) Dwtstanding & Qither Expense Payabla ™
Tatal .I
A

Ag at Az at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
3.613.204 1,818,731
82,5093 446 B5,THZ 544
67 206,550 57,601,325
30-45 Days 30-45 Days
As AL As AL
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
3,613,204 1,818.781
Az at As at
3-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
. E51,171
5,447 653 10,052,535
14,623,056 17,382,397
184,132,506 172,518,977
217,203,250 200,615,020




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

MNotes to the Standalone financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2019

tAmounts in INR Rupees unless othenwvise stated)

22 Revenue from Operations

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue for the year from continuing

operations {excluding other income-see note 23)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

(a) Revenue from rendering of healthcare services
{b) Revenue from =ales at pharmacies

ic) Fees and Collections

(d) Other operating revenues

23 Other Income

a) Interest income

Interest on Bank Deposits & Others

b) Dividend Income
Dividends from equity investments

All dividends from equity investments designated as at FVTOC! recognised for
baoth the years relate to investments held at the end of each reporting period.

¢} Other non-operating incomea {net of expenses directly

attributable to such income)
Finance lease contingent rental income

Others (aggregate of immaterial items)

d) Other gains and losses

Met fareign exchange gains' (losses)

(a+bp+o+d)

24 Cost of materials Consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Cost of materials consumed

1.697,556,192

1,807,817 542

140,201,388 137,616,888
22173510 19,267,734
28,955 641 37,008,278

1,888,925, 731 1,801,710,442
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

10,202,378 4,379,584
10,202,378 4,379,584
383,156 1,198,524
383,156 1,198,529
6,103,255 B0, 556
6,103,255 B0, 556
16,688,790 5,938,869
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

64 648,104 10.763 611
569,678,014 L86, 435 651
634,226,118 597,198,262

(26,271,033 (B4 543,104)
607,955,085 532,561,158
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the peried ended March 31, 2019

{Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Inventories at the end of the year;
Stock-in-trade (end of the year)

Inventories at the baginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade (beginning of the year)

Met {Iincrease) / decrease

26 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and ather funds
Bonus

Staff welfare expenses

27 Finance costs

Continuing operations
(@) Interest cosis -
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (other than those from related parties)

Interest on obligations undar finance leases
Interest on convertible notes
Interest on interest-free government loans
Other interest expensze
Total interest expense for financial liahilities not classified as at FVTPL

Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets

(b)) Amortized interest cost on redeemakble preference shares
ic} Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

(d) Other barrowing costs ;-

Unwinding of discount on costs to sell non-current assets classified as held for
sale

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment pertaining to continuing operations

Depraciation of investmeant praperty
Amortisation of intangible assets
Total depreciation and amertisation pertaining to continuing operations

Depreciation of property, plant and equipmeant pertaining to

discontinued operations |
Total depreciation and amortisation expense ,J >

[ [ -
L | g

|J’ J‘H.f’

.—"/"

]
/
/s

25 Changes In inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade - Pharmacy

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

6,437 266 11,200,362
6,437 266 11,200,362
11,208,362 40,831 442
11,208,362 40,831 442
4,772,098 29,622,080
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 20198 March 31, 2018
271,432,234 266,651,253
14,191,926 13,442 666
7,102,200 7,201,307
20,541,020 22,218,100
313,267,380 309,514,326
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

55,366,956 5@ 605, 845
8,180,672 £,498,985
63,547,628 65,194,934
63,547,628 65,194,934
7,072 924 10,051 604
70,620,552 75,246 538
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
82,826,511 87,588,814
1,402,425 411,919
84,228,938 88,000,733
84,228,236 88,000,733
i \'-"'.'f“""_'L'_:"r’F’-A
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Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2019
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29 Other expenses
Particulars

Peowvwer and fual
Water Chargas
Rent
Repairs & Maintenance Expesnes
Repairs to Buildings, Machinery & Others
Fepairs to Medical Equipments
Fepagirs to Vehicles
Annual maintainance Charges
Insurance
Retainer fees to Doctars
Cutsource Charges
House Keeping Expenses
Food & Beverages Expenses
Bio Meodical Mainfenance
Security Charges
Cutsourcing Expenses - T
COutsourcing Expenses
Fates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income
Other operating & administrative Expenses
Communication & Telephons Expeness
Directar Sitting Fees
Advertisernent, Publicity & Marketing
Travelling & Conveyance
Legal & Professional Fees
Continuing Medical Education & Heospitality Expenses
Seminar Expenses
Books & Periodicals
Provision for Bad Debts
Bad Debiz Written off
Loss on Sale of Assat
Miscellanecus expenses

29.1 Payments to auditors
a) For audit
b For taxation matters & other services
¢} For reimbursemeant of expanses

29.2 Expenditure incurred for corporate social responsitility

29.3 Income taxes relating to continuing operations

Current tax
|n respect of the current vear (Curment tax)
In respect of prior years
Others |

Less : MAT Entitlement credit |
Met Current tax ' ";H

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
44 486,742 41,212,943
2,858 934 2,827,055
4 524 131 4,711,168
17,500,350 19,375,880
2,012,951 5,197,089
743106 1,106,654
18,321,430 14,205,766
2,462,340 2082 2682
210,548,504 186,771,332
41,005,257 48 585,345
36,965,167 36,102,363
9 .884 610 10,142, 145
13,341,973 13,821,362
B78,823 -
7,991,673 4,677,050
5,681,585 4,804,718
4,704,033 27,708,332
2,777.286 3,118,278
560,500 237,840
72273473 70,480,643
17,040,450 14,132,776
9,648,927 B276 473
3,126,880 2,485 107
4,025,752 2,337 565
520,746 343,355
13,294 778 6,651,136
&70.607 3,075078
113,206 -
1,483 538 3,954 046
549 548 554 539,274,688
826,000 500,000
147,600 155,000
59 404 152,296
1,032,994 BOT,296
3072218 3,112,377
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

42,144,864 27,818,400
42144 864 27,818 400
(42 144 864) (27 816, 400)
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2019
{Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax

In rezpect of the current year {Deferred tax) 61.993 230 42 817 602
In respect of prior years = 2
61,903,230 42 B17,602
Total income tax expense{Before MAT Entitlement Credit) recognised in the 104,138,004 70,636,002
current year relating to continuing operations
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit befora tax from continuing operations 183,851 6502 126,879,665
Income tax expense calculated at 29.12% {2017-2018: 34.61% ) 53,5637.558 43,947 624
Effect of Difference between Tax rate and MAT Rate (13,817 .550) (17,332,709)
Effect of Expenses/income Permanently not deductible or claimable for Income 3,3%4 910 5,471,865
tax
Effect of previously unrecognised and unused tax Iosses and deductible 61,123,185 3A8.549 122
temporary differences on deferred
tax assets unconziderad earlier.
104,128,094 70,836,002
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss {relating to continuing operations) 104,138,094 70,638,002

- before MAT Entitlement credits

The tax rate used for the year ended F.¥. 2018-19 is 28.12% and for F.¥Y. 2017-2018 i= 34.61% Reconciliations above is the corporate
tax rate of 23,12% (FY 2018-19) and {for FY 2017-18 34.61%) payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian
tax law,

As. Finance Act, 2019, the tax rate for companies having turnover in FY 2016-17 less than 250 crores, the tax rate would be 25% plus
surcharge and cess, accordingly in FY 2018-1%, rate applied is 29.12%
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Segment information

Products and services frem which reportable segments derive their revenues

The Directors af the campany are directly invalved in the aperations af the Cempany, including the subsidiaries. Accordingly. the Baard of Directers hag
been ideniified as the Chief Operting Cecision Maker (CSOOM).

Information reparted 1o the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpases of resource allacalion and assessment of segmen! perfomance
foouses on the model of healthcare services delivered. The directors of the Company have chosen to arganise the Company amound diferences in
praducts and services, Accordingly, haspitals, pharmacies, and Nursing Institute have been identified as the roperating segments,

The Company operates in mainly in India, and the drugs sold in the pharmacies, are regulated under the Drug Contral Act. which applies uniformby all over
The accounting palicies adopled for segment repering are 0 line with he accounting policies adopted in Standalone financial statements with the
following additional policies for Segment Reporing:

a.Revenue and expanses have been ldentified to segments on the basls of their relaticnship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue and
expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable fo segments an a reasonable basis. have been included undar *unallocable
BXpEnses”

b Inter segmeant revence and expensas are eliminated.

The Company has disclosed this Segment Repoding in Standalone Financial Statements as per Ind AS 108

30.2 Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from canfinuing eperations by reportable segment.
Segment Revenue Sagment Profit

1-Mar-19 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
Health cara 1,719,579,381 1,637 755,257 214,408 578 170,055 208
Pharmacy 140,201,385 137,616,838 41,068 456 43,624,554
Murzing Institute 22 368 510 19,342 734 1,613,808 146,145
Total 1,862,149,280 1,794,714, 879 257,080,941 222,629,907
Less: nter Segment Revenue (589 500) {580 500) {588,500) (89 500)
Total for continuing operations 1,881 558 789 1,794,125,379 256,491,441 222 240,407
Oithear income 24 054 732 13523732
Central administration cosis and (26,074,118} (33,536,045}
direclors’ salanes
Finance costs (70,620 552) (75,2446 538)
Profit before tax (continuing oparations) 183,851,503 126,973 556

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Company's accaunting palicies described in note 3, Segment prafil represents
the prafit before tax eamed by each segment without aliccation of central administration costs and directors' salarles, share of profit of associales, share
of profit of joint venlures, ather income, as well as finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decisian makar for the purposes of
resource allacation and assessment of segment parformancea,

30.3 Segment assets and liabilities As at As at
3 March 2018 31 March 2018
Segment Assels
Health cara 1,676,198 484 1,738,801,091
Fharmacy 6,260,521 14,440 905
Mursing Institula B 322675 B 055,870
Total Segment Assots 1,6490,781,680 1,761,306,866
Aszsets relating to ... and ..., operations (now . =
discontinued)
Unallocated 448,850,023 386 362 007

Standalone total assets

Segment liabilities

2,139,671,702

2.117,688,962

e

Heallh care 40, 771.017 1,033,354 990

Fharmacy 6,260,521 14.448.805

Mursing Institute 8322675 8.055 B70
Total Segment liabilities 955,354,212 1,055.860, 765
Liaby relating ta . ... and ... operations (naw discontinued) - -
Unallocated . =
Standalone total liabilities 955,354,212 1,055,860, 765

Far the purpeses of monitoring zegment performance and allocating resources betwseen segments:

+ all assels are allocated to reportable segments other than investmenis in associates, investments in joint ventures, other investments, loans, other

financial assets and current and defemed tax assets, which assats are repored undar "Healthcara™,

* all liabilities are allocated to repodable segments other than bomowings, other financial liabilities current and deferred lax liabilities which liabilities are

reparted under "Healthcare", f/l
IT [| g
," | I'Jl J\,,-"?

,"l. 4
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30.4 Other segment information Depreciation Addition to Non Current Assets
31-Mar-18 3-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Health cara 83,485,534 BY 242 958 16,370,083 143,910,755
Pharmacy 81,370 81,370 E 183,001
Mursing Institule BEZ D27 G776 405 47 415 1,875,123
84,228 336 B8 000,733 15417 508 145,968,920

Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2018
{Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

In additicn to the depreciation and amerdisation repored above, impairment losses of Rs il were recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment

and goodwill, respectivaly. These Impairment losses were attibutable to the following reportabile segments.

Impairment losses recognised for the year in respect of property, plant and aquipment

Health care Mil
Pharmacy N?F
Mursing Institute Hil
Hil
30.5 Revenue from major products and sarvices

The following is an anakysis of the Company's revenue from continuing operations from its major praducts and ser 31-Mar-19 Ji-Mar-18
Health care 1,719,578,391 1.637, 755,257
Pharmacy 140,201,388 137,616 858
Mursing Instiute 22 368 510 19,342 734
Less: inter Segmeant Revenue (5RE 501 {585 5000
1.881,559,780 1,794 125378

CHher Income 24.054,732 13 523 732

205,614,521

1,807,649, 111

%

30.6 Information about major customers

Mo single customers conftribuled 10% or more 1o the Company's revenue for both 2018-2019 and 2017-2018.

3 Earnings par Share

H-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Basic earnings per shana
From cantinuing aperations 1.21 0.90
From dizscontinued cperations = =
Total basic earnings per share 1,21 0.50
Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations 1.2 0.90
From discentinued cperations = :
Total diluted earnings per share 1.21 0.80

31.1 Basic earnings per share
The eamings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic eamings per share are as follows
Frofit for the year attibutable fo owners of tha Company 121.858.273 84,161,554
Cividends paid on convertible non-participating preference Shares : -
Earnlngs used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 121,858,273 B4,161 854
Frofil for the year fram discantinuad operations attributable to awners of the Company - -
Cthers [describe] = r
Earnings used In the calculation of basic eamings per share from continuing operations 121,858,273 84,161,854
VWieighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic eamings per share 100,603,068 93,103,068
31.2 Diluted sarnings per shara

The earnings used in the calculation of diluted eamings per share are as follows.
Eamings used In the calculation of basic eamings per shara 121858273 54,161,954
Interest on converlible notes (after fax at 30%) - .
Eamings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share Prafit for the year from discantinued cperations atir 121858273 B4, 161,954
Others [dascribal - =
Earnings used In the calculation of diluted earnings pershare from continuing operations 121,858,273 84 161,854

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the weighted average number clf Eqmt:-' ET'IEIEIS

used in the calculatizn of basic earnings per share as follows:

Weighted average number of equity shares used in thecalculation of basic earnings par share
;_,..-

- parily paid equity shares

- canvertible noles

Shares deemed to be issued for no conzideration in rezpect of: ;
) .'
- others [describe)

- emploves options
Walghted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 100,603,068

LY uagan
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32 Employee benefit plans

321 Definad contribution plans
The employees of the Company's are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operaled by the governmant, The Company s requined Lo
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement banefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Company with respect to
the retiremant banefil plan is 1o make the specified contribulions

The tolal expense of Rs, 00,681,236/~ (out of which Rs.62,54, 592 towards pension fund and Rs 28,26 644/~ towards PF, has been recognized for the year
in profit or loss {for the year ended March 31, 2018: R=.1,27,35 456/~ out of which Rs 58 41,227/ towards Fension fund contnbution and Rs, 3894, 2290 far
PF )

representa confributions paid £ payvable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

32.2 Defined benefit plans
The company contributes all ascerained liabilities with respact 1o gratuity o a fund under a Group Gratuity Scheme of LIC of India whose Plan Assels are
managead by LIC of India, The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit refiing plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lumpsum payment 1o the vested employees at retirement f death / incapacitation { termination of employment based an the respective employeas salary
and tenure of employment with the campany

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarnial risks such as shown below;

Invesiment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denaminated in Indian
Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference 1o
market yields al tha and of the reparting period on government bonds. For
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate iz determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on high gqualily corperata bends
when there is & deep market for such bonds; if the raturn on plan assel is below
this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currenily, for the plan in India. it has a
relatively balanced mix of investments in govemment securiies. and other debt
instrurnents. Further, the overseas plan has a relatively balanced

investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real estates, Due fo the
lang-term natura of tha plan fabililies, the board of the cverseas Fund
considers it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be
invested in equity securities and in real estate to leverage the returmn generatad

by the Fund.

Interest risk & decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however. this
will be parially offset by an increaze in the ralum on the plan's debt
invesiments

Longevity risk The prasent value of the defined banelit plan liatility is calculated by reference

to the best estimate of the mortality of plan paricipants both during and afler
their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan's liability

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabiliy s caloulated by reference
te the future salanes of plan participants. Az such, an increase inthe salany of
the plan paticipants will increasa the plan's liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan azsetzs and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out
as at March 31, 20159

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows. Valuation as at

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
Discoun rate(s} 7.75% 7.B5%
Expecied rate(s) of salary increase T.00%, 7.00%
Adtrition Rate 4.00% 3.00%
Retirement Age 58 58

Pre-retirement meorality
Average longesity at retiremaent age for current beneficiaies of the plan {years)*

Males Indian Assured |ndian Assured Lives
Lives Morality  Merality [2006-08)
(2006-08)
Females Indian Assured Indian Assured Lives
Livas Morality  Morality (2006-08)
(200E-08)
Awerage longevily al reatirament age for current employees (fulure beneficiaries of the plan) (yaars)®
Males MA, MA
Females M It
* Baged on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflact axp L‘IFEII'J changes in mortality! others (please describe).———
Fl r N

Pt
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Amaounts recognised in Standalone statament of profit and loss |n respact of These defined banefit plans 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18
aro as follows.
Service cost:
Cument service cost 4 609 530 6,005,840
Past service cost and (gain)lozs from settlements + -
Mel interest expensa (1. 985) s, 130
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 4,604,541 6,673,970
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Retumn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 401,156.00 236,924.00
Actuarial (gaing) / Iosses arizing from changes in demographic assumptions 217 Ba9.00 (535, 744.00)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising frem changes in financlal assumptions 181,780 {7, 0k, 83
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience adjustments (1,700,902) {2,170.032)
Chhers [describe] = i
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset -
Components of defined beneafil coste recognised in other comprehensiva income = t
Total (890, 267) {9.459,845)
The current service cost and the net interest expense for the vear are included in the 'Employes benefits
expanse’ [ine item in the Standalone statement of profit and loss.
The remeasurernent of the rel defined benefit liability 15 included in athar comprehensive Income.
The amount included In the Standalone balance sheest arising from
the entity's obligation in respect of its dofined benefit plans is as 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation {30,124,852) [26,825971)
Fair value of plan asseats 32 586,005 208,888 523
Funded status 2462013 63,552
Restrictions on asset recognised - r
Mhers [describe] - -
Met liahility arising from defined benefit obligation 2,462,013 63,552
Change in Defined Benefit Obligation H-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Cipaning definad banafil ohligation 28,825 871 32 143,533
Curment service cost 4,609,530 6,005,840
Interest cost 2,262,839 2.462,195
Remeasuramant (gainsylosses!
Actuarial gains and lesses arising fram chanoes in demaographic assemptions 217,598 {535, T44)
Actuaral gains and losses arising fram changes in financial assumptions 181,760 [7.040,893)
Actuanal gains and losses arising from experience adjustments (1,700,002} [2.170,032)
Chers [desaribe] - =
Fast service cost, inclieding losses(gains) on curailments -
Liabilities extinguished on settlements - =
Liabilities assumed in a business combination # =
Exchange differences on foreign plans - -
Banefils paid {4,282 025) (2,038 B28)
Others [describe] i
Closing defined benefit obligation 30,124,892 28,825,971
Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-13 31-Mar-18

Opening fair value of plan assals 28 889,523 23421210
Inferes! incame 2,267 B28 1,754 065
Remeasureament gain {lass):
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expenze) (401,156} {2045, 924)
Others [describe] . -
Confributicns from the employer 6,112,735 6,000,000
Confributions from plan participants
Assets distributed on seftlements - -
Assels acquired in a business combination - -
Exchange differences cn foreign plans - =
Benefits paid 14,282 025) (2,038,828)
Cither [desonbe] -
Closing fair value of plan assets 32,586,905 28 BB9 523
The tair value of the plan assels for the India and averseps plan at the end of the reporting pericd for each category, are as follows

5 g 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

i1 Ln.-f -

- Insurance Fund I| 1 32,586 805 28 659,523
Total e 32,588,905 28,889,523
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Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting 31-Mar-159 31 -Mar-18
1at Following Year 1,277 067 065,360
2nd Fallowineg Year 1,350 658 BE3 BBE
Ird Following Year 1,764 400 1,145,358
4th Faflowing Year 2474244 1,503,016
5th Following Year 1,781,507 2,62 867
Sum of 6 1o 10 Years 11,141 442 9,130,374
Sum of ¥Years 11 and above 66,969,021 B3 284 B33

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality, The sensitivity
analysas below have bean determined based on reasanably possible changes af the respeclive assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumplicns constant

The sensilivity of the defined benafit cbligaticn 1o changes in the weighted principal assumplions is

Changa In assumption Increase In assumption Decrease in assumption
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 3-Mar-18 H-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Digcouat rale 100 basis gainls 100 basls ponts -2 960,165 3,280,102 3501870 3,547,908
Saary growi (e 100 basis goinls 100 basis ponts 3,450 854 34918072 3,006,129 -3,232.251
Employes Turnower 100 basis gairds 100 basis points 167 028 1B, 741 -1 305 -FE4 A28

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be represeniative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumplions waukd ococur in isolation of ane anolher as some of the assumplions may be corelated.

Furthermore, in presenfing the above sensifivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the sama az that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liabilily recognised in the
batanca sheet.

There was no change in the methads and assumptions usad in preparing the sensifivity analysis from prior years.

Each year an Asset-Liability-Matching study is performed in ‘which the conseguences of the stralegic investment policies are analysad in terms of risk-and-
return profiles. Investment and contribution pelicles are integrated within ihis study. Main strategic cheices that are formulated in the actuarial and technical
paticy docurment of the Fund are:

« Assel mix based on 25% equity instruments, 50% debt instruments and 25% Investment propartios;

+ Interest rale sensilivity caused by the duralion of the defined banefit chligation should be reduced by 30% by the use of debtinstruments in combination

= Maintaining an equity buffer that gives a 97.5% assurance that assets are sufficient within the next 12 months.

There has baan na change in the process used by the Company fo manage its risks from priar periods.

The Company has employee benefit schemes by way of Privilege & Sick Leave encashment which are unfunded. Thesa are actuarity valuad every year
and tha liability thereof for Sick leave is INR 61,82 745~ and that for Privilage Leave is INR 1,36, 75.894/(-. Tha assumplions are the same as considerad in
Group Gratuity benefit (dislosed above),

33 Financial instruments
331 Capital managemeant

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the retum to
stakehalders through the optimisation of the dabt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consiats of net debi (borrowings as detailed in borrowing notes) offset by cash and bank balances and tolal equity of
the Company.

The Coempany is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company's risk management committes reviews the capital structure of the Company on a sami-annual basls. As part of this review, the commitiee
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Company is initaiting effarts 1o reduce the gearing ratia,

Gearing ratio Ag at Az at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.,
Dbt {i}y 516,874,121 631,278,553
Cash and bank balances (including cash and bank balances in a disposzal (71,899.6748) (51,771,137)
Company held for sale)
MNet Debt 444,874,146 579,507 416
Total Equity 1,184 317 489 1.D'E"I.BEB._‘I95
Met debt to equity ratio 0,38 0.55
{l} Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borowings (excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts and contingent consideration), as described
in notes, I
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33.2 Categories of financial instruments
Ag at As at
Financial assets ___M March 2019 31 March 2018

Measured at fair value thraugh profit ar loss (FVTPL)

{a) Mandatorily measured: & 3
(i) Equity investments =

(ii} Derivative instruments other than designated hedge accounting - -
relationships

(b} Desygnaled as at FVTPL Measured at amartised cost - =

(i) Mutual Fund investments

Maasured at amortised cost

(a) Cash and bank balances {including cash amd bank balances in a 71.899.975 51,771,137
digposal Company held for sala)

(b} Other financial assets at amorised cost (including frade receivablas in 440 267 054 414 832 GGY
a disposal Company held for sale)

Measured at FYTOC
(&) Debt instruments - -
(b} Investmants in equily instrumeants designated upon initial cognition -

Financial liabllities

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FWTPL)

[a) Held far trading - g
(b} Designated as al FVTPL upon initial recognition X :
(c) Dervative instrumants other than in designated hedge

accounting relationships

Measured at amortisad cosl (Including trade payables balance in a - -
disposal Company held for sala)

Borrawings 516,874,121 631,278,553
Trade Payables and athers 190,236 257 191,853,051

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

Carrying amount of financial assats designated as al FVTPL - -
Cumulative changes in fair value atributable to changes in credit risk - -
Changes in fair value atfributable to changes in credit risk recognized = 5
during the year

33.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Campany's Corporate Treasury funclion provides services lo the business, co-ordinates access fo domestic and international financial markets,
menitors and manages the financial risks relating to the cperations of the Company through internal risk reperts which analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks, These rizks inclede market risk {(including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and iquidity risk,

Tha Corporate Treasury function repors quaderly fo the Company's senior managemeant and beard of directors | that monitors risks and policies
implemented to mitigate sk exposures,

33.4 Market risk

The Company's activities expase it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, The company's finance
team manages these risk by effective financial management.

32.5 Foreign currency risk management
The Company underiakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consaquentty, exposures o axchange rate fluctuations arse. Exchange rate
exposures are managed within approved policy parameters

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reparting period are as

follows. \
|
| ,.l Assets as at
d 3110312018 31032018
Trade Recaivables (in US0) . (] 1,022,400 1,624,232
Trade Receivables {In INR) [ )" o~ 135,481 422 B 181,755
| . -
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to currency dollars.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the Rs. 7,07.03,6185 against the relevant foreign currencies. 10%
iz the sensilivity rate used when reporting foreign currancy risk internally to key management personnel and represants management's assessmant of ihe
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency dencminated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. & positive number below indicates an increase in profit or eguity
where the Rs. strengthens 10% against the relevant currency, Far a 10% weakening of the Hs, against the relevan curency, there would be a comparable
impact on the profit or equity, and tha balances below would be negative,

201819 2047-18
+10% -10% + 10 - 10%
Irnpact an Profit or Loss Tor the year 12,249,142 (13,349 142} 53.918,178 {9.818,178)
Impact an Equily for the yaar 13,248,142 (13,349,142} 9,918,176 [0,818,178)

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepreseniative of the inharent foraign exchange rsk bacause the exposure at the end of the reporting
pencd does nol reflect the exposura during tha yvear

Interest rate risk managemaont

The Company is expased o interest rale rigk because entities in the Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed
by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borowings, and by the use of interest rate swap contracts and foreard
interest rale confracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with inferest rata views and defined rsk appeatile, snsuring the most cost-effective
hadging strateges are applied,

The Company’s expasures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this nofe.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensilivity analyses balow have been detarminad based on the expasura o inferest rates for both derivatives arnd non-derivative instruments at the end
af the reporing perod. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amaunt of the liability outstanding at the end of the reparting pariod
was oulstanding for the whole year, A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk intemally 10 key management parsonne
and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Ifinterast rates had baan 50 basis points higher/lower and all ather variables wera hald constant, the Company’s:

« proofit for the year ended March 31, 2019 would decrease/ increase by IMR 2,76 Million (for the vear ended March 31, 2018; increase by INR 3.96 Million),
This is mainky attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings; and

« athar comprahansive income for the year ended March 31, 2018 wauid not have been impacted (for the year ended March 31, 201 8: would nol have baan
impaciad)

Crodit risk management

Credit risk refers 1o the risk that a counlerparty will default on its confraciual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Majority of the
Company's fransactions are eamed in cash or cash equivalenis. The trade receivables comprise mainly of receivables from Insurance Companies,
Corporate custemers and Government Undertakings, The Insurance Companies are required o mainfain minimum reserve levels and the Corporate
Customers are enterprisas with high cradit ratings. Accardingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is cansiderad low.

Before accapting any new oredit customer, the Company usea an intemal credit scoring system 1o assess the potential customer's credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer, Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed anually. The culstanding with the debtors is reviewed periodically.

The cradit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limiled bacause the coumarparlies are banks with high credil-ratings assigned by
intematicnal credil-rating agencies.

Ligquidity risk managemeant

Ultimate responsibility for liguidily nsk management rests with the board of direciors, which has established an appropriate liquidity sk management
framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and lang-term funding and llquidity management requirements. The Company
manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequale resarves, banking faciities and reserve borrowing facilities, by confinuausly manitaring forecasi and actual
cash flows, and by malching tha maturity profiles of financial assetz and liabilities. 34balow sets out details of additional undrawn facilites that the Company
has al its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following tatles detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financiallizbilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial labiliies based on the eadiest date on which the Campany can be required o pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flaws. Ta the extent that interest fiows are floating rale, the undiscounted amaunt is derived from inferest
rate curves at the end of the reporing period

The contractual maturity is based on the earfiest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars Wisig hted 3 months to 1 1 Year to § years = 5 years
avarage affactive yaar
; interest rate] %)

March 31, 2019 |
Meon-interest bearing : — - - -
Warlable interest rate instruments * - AERMRT A 104,024,436 294 227013 52,991 666
Fixed interast rate instrumanis ‘Ilrj > /‘E i _'_""\Li/{' it - ) o

s s 104,024,436 294,227,013 52,991 666

[
'gf{,,
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March 31, 2018
Man-inerest beanng

“Wanable inlerest rale instrumeanis * 9.50%"* 25,074,840 353,350,377 B2 590,624
Fixed interest rate instruments * 106.90% 279,250 . -
85,354 150 393,350 377 02 540,624

*These ara nol cumulative
** Existing Average interest rate

The camying amounts of the above are as foliows: As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18

Mon-interes! baaring
Yariable interest rate instruments 414,086,271 550,121,114

Fixed interes! rate instruments . 428,885
414,096 271 550,550,009

The amounts included above for variable inlerest rate instruments for non-denvative financial liabilifies iz subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimatas of intarest rates datarmined at the end of the reparting period.

34.2 Financing facllities

As at As at

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Secured bank overdraft facility:

- amount used [ Y 71,135 465 70,128,185

- amount unused | 108 564 535 1089 871,815

- 180,000,000 180,000,000
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Falr valus of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
The company canziders that the carmying amounts of financial assats and financial labilities recognised in the Standalone financial statements

approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March, 2018

Particulars Ags at 31 March, 2019
Carrying Amount Fair Valua Carrying Amount Fair Yalue

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost:

- loans o related pariies . - - -

- trade: receivables 436,661,325 435,661,325 412,346,288 412 348,288
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 71,899.4975 71,899.975 51,771,137 51,771,137
- Other Financial Assets 68,456 434 68,455 439 67,165,178 67,195,178
Financlal llabllities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:

- converible notes (including inferest accruad) L - e g
- perpatual noles - a - -

- bank fcans 380,073,378 380,073,376 501,006,553 £01,004,553
- Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares 136,800,745 136,800,745 130,272,000 130,272,000
- loans from related parties - - - =
- Other Financial Liabilities 123,030,247 123,030,247 126,048,311 126,046,311
- trada payables 67206 650 GY.206.650 67,601,325 67,501,325

Related party transactions

Balances and lransactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parlies of the Company, have been eliminated on
consalidation and are not disclosed In this note. Details of transactions between the Company and other related parfies ara disclosed below.

List of Related Parties
Apolle Hospitals Enterprise Limited
Cadila Pharmaceuiicals Lid

Green Channal Travels Services Privatle Limted

IRM Enterprises Private Limited

Stemeyte India Therapeutics Private Limiled

Apollo Sindoari Hotels Limited

Faber Sindoori Management Services Privale Limited
Indraprastna Medical Corporation Limited

Apallo Health and Lifestyle Limited
MedSmart Logistics Private Limited
Crhruvi Pharma Private Limited

Apallo BMunich Health Insurance Co. Lid.

Apallo Amrish Oncology Services Pyt Ltd

Apallo CWHF Limited

35.2 Trading transactions

Relationship

Holding Compary

Entities having significant influance
Entities having signifizant influance
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entitias having significant influence
Entities having significant influgnce
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entiliaz having significant influgnce

Jaint Wenture
Subsidiary

Particulars during the year, Company entities entered into the following trading transactions with refated parties that are not members of the Company:

Burchas Sarza Rendered ihzame | Sendes ikl Hoscrlzdze | Rembumeamenl o'Eazs | Reinbursersant ot Eaps [ihar Incoime Culstaredieg Dutdlansing Reod ki
e eperdze de) Iz begqueef Inumed on besalo'RPT | bacured ba RPT znow | |Renl, interdd, Derselz | Fasdhis
Pasthules sl I
{ 1

Hlael: MM N MYl Ve MR e Tlw Adaeld MM HNaeE !!M'li! Adadd el HAedd P
Aaoh thmshab Edepss Ui o | men ! I bvnd Bk I B T HENM wel|
Cafa Pemandiat Lintes FRTCRT: T E ) TP 1ot ; i : : wm| | taem| e
e Grerad Trawk Sarvices Prvate Linled ' o AN BIRE ! . [AHLE I i -
BN Enleprss Pt Livied 1,30 Wi . - R HORE | LI Tm
Serwofs I T Proce Limier H0 LA TR - LR I e E . 12790 qWAH
HBgaln Sivdo balels Lmiad BIGIE BME IR T - e e B I e R
Fabw 5o Waragenand Sovécns Frivalz Linded b B 1] I B 1T - BILMEl AR -
mdepta Medca Coporlio Linded . + - ] F 1 IR .
Aol Faehh grd Libsve Livild [ab 313 . ' ' . . < LEEE| 170G
Ko vt o sy s P L L L] (1R MO 1T E B N R NG BTN
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Apaolle Hospitals Intarnational Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
tAameownts in INRE Rupees unless othervise stated)

Soreice Availed from BPT;
- Apoking of A tokets from Gosn Channo! Troeels Servicss Snvale Limed
- Food & Beeerags sanaces fiom 1RM Enterpises Poeele Liviled
- FEA-Manpower sanacas feom Apola Snapon Homels Limided
- Blomedical-Manpowes serdoes from Fatse Smaooa Wanagemenl Serices Prvate Limiad
Catsowms Lab fnvastipahon b SlemSyle ndla fhempetics Freabs Liresd

Compensation of key managemant parsonnal
I'ne remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel dunng Lhe year was as follows.
Partlculars Year anded Year ended
31-Mar-13 31-Mar-18
Employee Benefils 10,210,746 10,865 807
10,210,746 10, 858.807

The remuneration of direciors and key exaculives s determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the parformance of individuals and

market trends,

Commitments
Fariculars 3-Mar-19 21-Mar-18
Commiitrnants for the acquisition of praparty, plant and equipment 5,343 218 1,320,408
The Company's share of the capital commitments made jointly with other jeint venlurers relating to its joinl
venture, is as follows:
Particulars 3-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Commitments lo contribute funds for the acquisilion of propery, plant and aquipment 5,343,214 1,320,408
Commitments to provide loans - .
Commitments to acaulre other venturer's ownership
interest when a particular event ocours or does not
prcur in the future (please spacify what the particular event is) = Z
Dihers (please specify) - -
Contingent liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-18 3-Mar-18
a) Claims againsl the Company not acknowiedged as debt 66027 000 58527000
(b) Guaranteses excluding financial guarantees . £
(d) Cther meney for which the company is contingently llable
Custams Duly - u
Service Tax 17,616,820 17,904.755
Walue Added Tax : .
Income Tax % -
EPCE . =
{&) Other maney for which the company is contingently Hable
- Centingent liabilitizs incurred by the Company arlzing from its
interasts in joint ventures & subsidiaries {Letter of Comfart to 166,405,956 20,000,000

YES Bank for Cradil Facilities of Apallo-Amrish Oncology
Senvices Put, Lid & Apollo CWHF Limited)

- Contingent liabilities incured by the Company arising from its interests in associales (please disclose the -
- Company's share of associales’ contingant labliities (i) -
- Compamy's shane of joint venture's contingent liabilties z

(It & number of contingent liabililes have arlsen as a resull of the Company's interest In s joint venture. The amaunt disclosed represents the
agaiegate amount of such contingent lizbiliies for which the Company as an investor is liable. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be raquired
is depandent on the future cperaticns of the |eint venlure being more or less favourable than currently expected. The Company is not contingantky

liatte for Iha liabilities of other venturers in its joint veniture.

{il] The amount disclosed represents the Company's share of conlingent liabiliies of associates. The extent to which an outflaw of funds will be

required is dependent on the future operations of the associates being more or less favourable than curently expecled.

{iiiy The guarantzes inciuded above excludes financial guaraniaes glven 1o banks by the Company to secure the financing facilities abtained by the

subsidiaries and other Company companies,

J
" llll. B
§ ) fet=
|'./ )lul___.-'"-"--




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Motas to the Standalone financial statoments for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless othenvise stated)

39 Events after the reparting period
There are no reportable evenls accuring after the balance sheet date.

40 Approval of financial statemanis
The fnancial statements were approved for izsue by the board of directors on 16-05-2018

41 Earnings In Foreign Currency

Particulars 3M-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

(1) Earnings in Foreign Currency

Income from Hospllal Services 76,603,712 THAZZ 114
{2y Expenditure in Foreign Currancy

Travelling & Marketing Expenses 5,335,863 2,782,324

Professional charges (Fre & followup care fees) 1,036,191 TH4 732
{3 Yolume of Imparts in Foreign Currency - Caplial Goods - 44 103,647

{4] Imporied Materials i )
o
(Consumptions relates fo ifems used for healtcare services only) JI|

k=

-
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

All amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

i As at As at
Particular Note No
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment & 1,196,917,014 896,217,930
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 - 110,785,074
(c) Other Intangible assets 6.1 3,542,324 796,264
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
a) Investments in Subsidiaries 7 - -
b) Investments in Joint Ventures 7 - -
(i) Other financial assets 9 68,138,960 67,857,247
(e) Deferred tax assets (Net) 19 103,008,376 123,115,988
(f) Other non-current assets 12 - -
Total Non - Current Assets 1,371,606,674 1,198,772,503
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 37,571,302 75,857,466
(b) Financial assets
(ii) Trade receivables 8 436,991,326 412,348,288
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 11.1 83,860,003 62,116,581
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 9,548,476 92,534,246
(vi) Other financial assets 9 3,761,905 4,402,118
(¢) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 164,996,009 123,153,981
(d) Other current assets 12 141,048,168 143,477,428
877,777,189 913,890,108
Assets classified as held for sale - -
Total current assets 877,777,189 913,890,108

Total assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 0047705/5200025

. e
b

V C Krishnan
Partner
M No. 022167

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 16th May, 2019

2,249,383,863

2,112,662,611

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

V

«

Director

o=

Deep “Tharanee
Chief Financial Officer

Director

/\/‘/—<-\/qu,3.

Nikunj Vyas
Company Secretary



Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

All amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

Particular Note No As Al A
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 14 1,006,030,680 1,006,030,680
(b) Convertible non-participating preference share capital - -
(c) Other equity 15 8,711,238 (49,238,073)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,014,741,918 956,792,607
Non-controlling interests 58,957,625 72,152,053
Total Equity 1,073,699,543 1,028,944,660
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 594,097,590 561,150,368
(iii)y Other financial liabilities 17 28,670,984 17,154,009
(b) Provisions 18 18,475,113 18,066,053
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - -
(d) Other non-current liabilities - -
Total Non - Current Liabilities 641,243,687 596,370,430
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 71,135,465 70,128,185
(i) Trade payables 20 74,503,555 67,601,325
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 124,270,715 124,251,725
(b) Provisions 18 13,355,658 1,954,519
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - C
(d) Other current liabilities 21 251,175,240 223,411,766
534,440,633 487,347,520
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified - -
as held for sale
Total Current Liabilities 534,440,633 487,347,520
Total Liabilities 1,175,684,320 1,083,717,950
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,249,383,863 2,112,662,611
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For, 8.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 004770S/S200025

ke =

V C Krishnan
Partner Director Director
M No. 022167 REGN. No,

004 7708/

3820

p o N /< Ve 3
Dee . Tharanee Nikunj Vyas
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Gandhinagar I
Date : 16th May, 2019 v




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2019

All amounts are in Rupees except for earnings per share information

Particular Note No. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
I Revenue from Operations 22 1,908,069,512 1,801,710,442
Il Other Income 23 18,924,397 10,758,021
Il Total Income (I+11) 1,926,993,909 1,812,468,463
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 615,480,061 532,551,158
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 88,518,853 102,450,360
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 25 3,566,326 29,622,080
Employee benefit expense 26 328,294,136 311,918,868
Finance costs 2T 75,077,210 75,246,538
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 91,673,443 88,046,567
Other expenses 29 618,266,788 588,422,154
Total expenses (IV) 1,820,876,817 1,728,257,724
V' Share of profit / (loss) of associates - -
VI  Share of profit / (loss) of joint ventures - -
VIl Profit/(loss) before tax (IlI-IV+V+VI) 106,117,092 84,210,740
VIll Tax expense
(1) Current tax 29.3 42,144,864 27,818,400
(1.1) MAT Entitlement Availed 29.3 (42,144,864) (27,818,400)
(2) Deferred tax 29.3 61,993,230 42,817,602
61,993,230 42,817,602
IX  Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 44,123,862 41,393,138
X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations before tax - -
XI' Tax Expense of discontinued operations - -
Xl Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) - -
Xl Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) 44,123,862 41,393,138
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) 890,267 9,459,845
(b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - -
(c) Others (specify nature) - E
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associates and - -
joint ventures, to the
extent not to be reclassified to profit or loss
890,267 9,459,845
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 259,246 3,216,347
B (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Exchange differences in translating the financial - -
statements of foreign operations
(b) Debt instruments through other comprehensive income - -
(c)Others (specify nature) - -
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associates and - -
joint ventures, to the
extent that may be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
X1V Other comprehensive income for the period (A (i-ii)+B(i-ii)) 631,021 6,243,498
XV Total comprehensive income for the period 44,754,883 47,636,636

(XHI+X1V)
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2019

All amounts are in Rupees except for earnings per share information

Note No. Year ended Year ended

Particular March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 70,032,741 56,900,281
Non controlling interests (25,908,879) (15,507,143)
44,123,862 41,393,138

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 631,021 6,243,498
Non controlling interests

631,021 6,243,498

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 70,663,762 63,143,779
Non controlling interests (25,908,879) (15,507,143)
44,754,883 47,636,636
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 31
Basic (in Rs.) 0.44 0.44
Diluted (in Rs.) 0.44 0.44
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 004770S/S200025

) -6 < g
Mg\\f\ ' \"’/

>
V C Krishnan
Partner Director Director
M No. 022167

o~ K \/&’%X ;

D pm(haranee Nikunj Vyas

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretan

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 16th May, 2019




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement as on March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwisc stated)

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 Wtarch 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year
Adjustments for:

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss

Interest Income recognised in profit 2r loss

Rental income recognised in profit .. loss

Other income recognised in profit or loss

Net Profit or loss on Sale of Assets

Adjustments for OCI

Provisions for Doubtful Debts

Actual Bad Debt written off in profit o loss statement

Depreciation and amortisation of nci: current assets

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Movements in working capital:

Increase in trade and other receivahies
(Increase)/decrease in amounts Jue from cusiomers
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets

Decrease in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in amount® due to trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
(Decrease)/increase in other liahilities
(Decrease)/increase in other financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes (paid) / refunds

Net cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Rental Income from properties & operating Lease
Other Income received
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment
Payments for intangible assets
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings & others
Interest paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and casii equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign
currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

10,61,17,092

7,50,77,210
(1,24,37,985)
(73,65.942)
(3,83,156)
1,13,206
8,90,267
1,32,94,778
6,70,607
9,16,73,443
(61,03,255)

(3,25,05,167)

8,42,10,740

7,52,46,538
(91,98,936)
(75.85,063)
(4,96,231)
(7,02,298)
94,59,845
66,51,136
30,75,078
8,80,46,567
(3,63,120)

(11,09,48,935)

3,82,86,164 (2.42,62,414)
24,29,257 6,63,01,516
3,58,501 (59,77,353)
69,02,230 38,31,792
1,18,10,199 8,21,463
2,81,94,501 (5,70,84,883)
1,15,35,064 13,70,162)
"""" 32,85,57,911 12,06,55,279
(8,39,86,892) (47,81,751)
- 24,4571,019 11.58,73,528
1,24,37,985 91,98,936
73,65,942 75,85,063
3,83,156 4,96,231
(28,04,24,095) (25,14,74,130)
1,86,188 15,93,598
(42,08,809) (2,32,199)
(26,42,59,634) (23,28,32,500)
- 15,00,00,000
14,90,35,800 10,10.00,000

(12,29,15,662)
(6.86,81,152)

(11 23,46,787)
(8,51,94,934)

“““““ (4,25,61,013) 7.34,58,279
o (6,22,49,628) (4,35,00,694)
8.45.22 642 12,80,20,772
, 2,564
- 2,22,73,015 8,45,22,642




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement as on March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

\Reconcilation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow
statement ‘

Cash and cash equivalents

Available with company for day tc day operations

Available with company as earmarked balances

Bank overdrafts
Balances as per statement of cash flows

In terms of our report attached

For S. Viswanathan LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 004705/S200025

V C Krishnan £ AT
Partner
M. No: 022167

—

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 16th May, 2019

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

8,25,68,061 6,13,13,530
1,08,40,418 9,33,37,297
(7,11,35,465) (7,01,28,185)
2,22,73,015 8,45,22,642
L/
‘Director Director
Deenak S. Tharanee Nikunj Vyas

Ch:t f Financial Officer

Company Secretary



Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity as on March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Amount
Balance at April 1, 2017 856,030,680
Changes in equity share capital during the year 150,000,000
Balance at March 31, 2018 1,006,030,680
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2019 1,006,030,680
b. Other Equity
Securi.ties int.:llAS Retained Other _ Sub -tgtal
premium  Transition earnings Comprehensive carried
reserve Reserve Income forward
Balance at April 1, 2017 444,033,295 18,411,817  (535,504,638) (1,663,130) (74,722,656)
Profit for the year - - 56,900,281 - 56,900,281
Add: Adjustment towards non-controlling interest 3,348,536 3,348,536
Add: Adjustment towards Securities Premium of non-controlling interest (41,007,733) (41,007,733)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - - - 6,243,498 6,243,498
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 19,241,085 6,243,498 25,484,583
Balance at March 31, 2018 444,033,295 18,411,817  (516,263,553) 4,580,368  (49,238,073)
Profit for the year - - 70,032,741 - 70,032,741
Add: Adjustment towards Securities Premium of non-controlling interest (12,714,452) (12,714,452)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - - 631,021 631,021
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 57,318,289 631,021 57,949,310
Balance at March 31, 2019 444,033,295 18,411,817 (458,945,263) 5,211,389 8,711,238

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial
statements v
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
All amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

General Information

Apollo Hospitals International Limited (AHIL), Ahmedabad ("the Holding Compnay") and its subsidiary (together "the Group") are tertiary care
unit of the Apollo Hospitals Company, Chennai. The Hospital focuses on centers of excellence like Cardiac Sciences, Neuro Sciences,
Orthopedics, Cancer, Emergency Medicine and Solid Organ Transplants besides the complete range of more than 35 allied medical disciplines
under the same roof. AHIL is subsidary of Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited ('the Compmany') which is a public Company incorporated in
India.

Application of new and revised Ind ASs
The company has applied all the Ind ASs notified by the MCA. There are no Ind AS that have not been applied by the company.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these Consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,leasing transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value
inuse in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these Consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
Consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Distributions received from an associate or a joint venture reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Company's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Company's interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Company discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Company has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Company determines whether there any is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net investment in an associate or a joint venture and that event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such an
objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Company’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the coverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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The Company discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Company retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Company measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at
the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in
the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Company accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Company reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Company continues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Company reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Company continues to use the equity method, the
Company reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a Company entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Company, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Company’s Consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Company.

3.4 Investment in Subsidiary

3.5
3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.5.4

3.6

3.6.1

Investment in subsidiary are measured at cost less impairment if any.

Revenue recognition

Rendering of services

Healthcare Services

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Services include charges for accommodation,

theatre, medical professional services, equipment, radiology, laboratory and pharmaceutical goods used. Revenue is recorded and recognised
during the period in which the hospital service is provided, based upon the estimated amounts due from patients and/or medical funding
entities. Unbilled revenue Is recorded for the service where the patients are not discharged and invoice is not raised for the service.

The company earns revenue primarily from medical services.

The services rendered by the entity is in single geographical location with one type of service, mainly rendering medical services with a single
type of customer who is normally referred to as a patient with defined contract duration, subject to severe exigencies unknown at the time of
admission of the patient and involves only one type of sales channel which is hospital services directly to the patient.

Effective April 1,2018 the company has applied Ind As 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 revenue recognition.

We have adopted the output methods which recognize revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer on the basis
of goods or services transferred to date, relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract.

The service revenues are presented net of related doctor fees in cases where the company is not the primary obligor and does not have the
pricing latitude.

Sale of Goods

Pharmacy Sales are recognised when the risk and reward of ownership is passed to the customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government. Revenue is reduced for rebates and loyalty points granted upon purchase and are stated net of returns and
discounts wherever applicable

Dividend and interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income
The Company's policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 3.6.1 below.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arran jing an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognisgd|on a straight-line basis over the lease term._— o
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The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Consolidated balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's general policy on borrowing costs (see note 3.11
below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Company entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

« exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

« exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Borrowings and Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the Consolidated balance sheet and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the difference between
proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

* service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
* net interest expense or income; and
* remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Consolidated balance sheet represents the actual deficit or suf;phi"‘ l‘(he“GQ\mpanys
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic beneﬁtS\a\/ xtablefﬁ‘the‘form of
refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plan

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longef W|thdraw the offer r/t‘hgé te
when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs. : :
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Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the

related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid

in exchange for the related service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether
the contributions are linked to service, as follows:

- If the contributions are not linked to services (e.g. contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset).

- If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. For the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of years of
service, the Company reduces service cost by attributing the contributions to periods of service using the attribution method required by Ind AS
19.70 for the gross benefits. For the amount of contribution that is independent of the number of years of service, the Company reduces
service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered / reduces service cost by attributing contributions to the employees’ periods
of service in accordance with Ind AS 19.70.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the Consolidated
statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings mainly comprise hospitals and offices. Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the Consolidated balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Fixtures, plant and medical equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. All repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expgcted useful lives on the same basis as owned assets;}ﬂ\qﬂe%?ﬁ,?when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the of the lease term, assets are depreciated ove!’,-tbé-\s"ﬁorterof.gﬁéxle@se term
and their useful lives. /. 5 = o

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: )V e
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Buildings (Freehold) 60 years
Plant and Medical Equipment 7-13 years
Surgical Instruments 3 years
Office Equipment - Others 5 years
Office Equipment - Computers 3 years
Vehicles 6 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the company has continued with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1,
2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
Accordingly, certain pre-operative costs have been charged off upon transition.

3.13 Intangible assets

3.13.1

Intangible assets acquired on a Standalone basis

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired on a Standalone basis are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired on a Standalone basis are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

3.13.2 Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.13.3 Useful lives of intangible assets

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
In the case of special software developed, the company has a policy of defining capitalization based on period of rests. The company is adopti
to amortize such capitalization in three years.

|Computer Software [3 years |

3.14 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

3.15

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

The inventories of all medicines, medicare items traded and dealt with by the Company are valued at cost. In the absence of any further
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale, the Net Realisable Value is not applicable. Cost of these
inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for
GST wherever applicable, applying the FIFO method.

Stock of provisions, stores (including lab materials and other consumables), stationeries and housekeeping items are stated at cost. The net
realisable value is not applicable in the absence of any further modification/alteration before being consumed in-house only. Cost of these
inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location, after adjusting for
GST wherever applicable applying FIFO method.

Linen, crockery and cutlery are valued at cost and written off applying FIFO method. The net realisable value is not applicable in the absence of
any further modification/alteration before being consum d-;-i\nft;opsq. Cost of these inventories comprises of all coSts of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their presfeg(«-\ld‘céfld ?’AI',*;/ N
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Imported inventories are accounted for at the appli’cg.
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3.16 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.16.1 Other Provisions
Other provisions (including third-party payments for malpractice claims) which are not covered by insurance and other costs for legal claims are
recognised based on legal opinions and management judgment.

3.17 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

3.18 Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on fair value basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets

3.18.1 Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer Note 3.22.5
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):
«  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is
disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

3.18.2 Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

3.18.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the Iife-tiﬁpected credit losses and represent mef[‘qg{r

& cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting dat d thus, are not cash shortfalls that ar -fnk;e&‘uéﬁ?ézf”bi@r\
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If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines
at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as
compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI
except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

3.18.4 Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

3.19 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the
end of each reporting period.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at
amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of
FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.

3.20 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

3.20.1 Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

3.20.2 Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

3.20.3 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement
approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-
market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

3.20.4 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost 7 aG\
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the ep@_b‘\f/\sphs“equ
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequen QLmeasured at amortised cost are detern'riné’dfbdﬁéd*ahith'e\ \
effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of ah asset is included in the 'Finance cost 'flil;\iiteffl S/
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Ind AS 116 Leases:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a
lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two possible methods
of transition:

» Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

+ Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial
application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

= Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application or

« An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognized
under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified Retrospective Approach’ for
transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company has elected certain available
practical expedients on transition.

The effect of adoption as on transition date would be insignificant on the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be
applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there
is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the
relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax
filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit
(tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied
retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity
on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
The company is in the process of evaluation of impact of such pronouncement.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes:
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', in connection with
accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income
or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or events. i
A NATHA DN
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3.23.3 Amendment to Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

-9

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, '‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

* to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

* to recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was
not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
The company is in the process of evaluation of impact of such pronouncements.

Historical Cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain assets and liabilities as stated
in the respective policies, which have been measured at fair value,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described at 3.16 above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. During the current year, the directors determined that the useful lives of certain items of equipment should be shortened, due to
developments in technology.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The business acquisitions made by
the company are also accounted at fair values. The board of directors of the Company has set up a valuation committee, which is headed up
by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
findings to the board of directors of the Company every year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Employee Benefits

The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term
nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Further details are given in note 32

Litigations
The amount recognised as a provision shall be the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation arising at the
reporting period

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital/clincial services rendered to insured and corporate patients are subject to
approvals for the insurance companies and corporates. Accordingly. the Company estimates the amounts likely to be disallowed by such
companies based on past trends.

Estimations based on past trends are also required in determining the value of consideration from customers to be allocated to award credits
for customers.

Basic Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit or loss from the continuing operations attributable to the parent entity.

By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
The profit or loss from the continuing operations attributable
By the weighted average number of equity shares outstandi

the parent entity.
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4.8 CURRENT VERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when;
Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

4.9 Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

4.10 Bad Debts Policy
The Company is following a hybrid method with respect to the policy on bad debts. The company evaluates the debtors on an average on a mon
to arrive at a possible figure of defining bad debts based on the Expected Credit Loss method. The company based on the net value after this ar
follows the following basis for bad debts policy.
The Board of Directors approves the Bad Debt Policy, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, after the review of debtors every year.
The standard policy for write off of bad debts is as given below subject to management inputs on the collectability of the same.

Ageing Expected Credit loss (%)
Within the credit period Nil
Less than 6 months past due 0%
6 months to 12 months past due 12.50%
1to 2 years past due 30%
2 to 3 years years past due 50%
>3 years past due 100%
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
All amounts are in Rupees except for earnings per share information

6 Intangible Assets

6.1 Other intangible Assets

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Carrying amounts of :
Capitalised development - -
Computer software 3,542,324 796,264
Non compete Fee - -
Trademarks - -
Others - -

3,542,324 796,264

Computer Non-Compete Other Intangible Total

Software Fees
Cost
Balance as at 01 April, 2017 15,456,865 - - 15,456,865
Additions from Standalone acquisitions 232,199 - - 232,199
Additions through business combination - - - -
Additions from internal developments - - - -
Disposals or classified as held for sale - - - -
Others (decribe) = - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 15,689,065 - - 15,689,065
Balance as at 01 April, 2018 15,689,065 - - 15,689,065
Additions from Standalone acquisitions 4,208,809 - - 4,208,809
Additions through business combination - - - -
Additions from internal developments - - - -
Disposals or classified as held for sale - - - -
Others (decribe) - = & -
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 19,897,874 - - 19,897,874
Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment -
Balance as at 1 April, 2017 14,480,882 - - 14,480,882
Amortisation expense for the year 411,919 - - 411,919
Disposals or classified as held for sale - - = "
Impairment losses recognised / (Reversed) in Statement of Profit - - - -
and Loss
Reversals of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - - - -
Others [describe] - o = -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 14,892,801 - - 14,892,801
Balance as at 01 April, 2018 -
Amortisation expense for the year 1,462,749 - - 1,462,749
Disposals or classified as held for sale - 5 - &
Impairment losses recognised / (Reversed) in Statement of Profit - - - -
and Loss
Reversals of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - - - -
Others [describe] - g - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 16,355,550 - - 16,355,550
[“\
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

7 Investments in subsidiaries &associates

7.1 Break-up of investments in subsidiaries & associates

Particular As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
QTty Amounts* QTy Amounts*
Quoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments - - - -
Total Aggregate Quoted Investments (A) - - - -
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd 1,855,000 33,350,000 1,855,000 33,350,000
Add: Share of Losses Reserves of Assocaites (1,855,000) (33,350,000) (1,855,000) (33,350,000)

Total Aggregate Unquoted Investments (B) - -

Total Investments Carrying Value (A) + (B) - -

Note: In line with the Equity Method of Consolidation, the share of losses only to the extent of the Investment Value has been considered. The share of

profit for the year are INR 6.33 Mio (share of cumulative accumulated losses including FY19 : INR 96.99 Mio)

7.2 Details of material associates

Details of each of the Company's material associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name of associate Principal Activity  Place of
Incorporation and
principai place of

Proportion of ownership interest /
voting

rights held by the Company

business
As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd Healthcare Ahmedabad 50.0% 50.0%
Apollo CVHF Limited Healthcare Ahmedabad 66.7% 63.7%
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consoldiated financial statements.
7.3 Summarised financial information of material associates and Subsidary
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Company's material associates is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind ASs
adjusted by the Company for equity accounting purposes.
As at As at
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Non-current assets 88,753,632 104,107,498
Current assets 149,336,397 141,847,030
Non-current liabilities 88,984,219 97,013,577
Current liabilities 309,110,013 321,599,649
Revenue 419,623,991 394,315,912
Profit or loss from continuing operations 12,859,333 (23,178,415)
Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - -
Profit (loss) for the year 12,859,333 (23,178,415)
Other comprehensive income for the year (204,840) (61,514)
Total comprehensive income for the year 12,654,493 (23,239,929)
Dividends received from the associate during the year - -
As at As at
Apollo CVHF Limited 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Non-current assets 375,859,380 113,955,690
Current assets 20,266,396 115,367,957
Non-current liabilities 175,367,458 15,359,423
Current liabilities 48,779,466 12,497,761
Revenue 22,419,138 4,819,353

Profit or loss from continuing operations

Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends received from the associate during the year

(77,734,411)

(77,734,411)

(77,734,411)

(42,768,817)

(42.768,817)

(42,768,817)
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8 Trade receivables
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good - 5 -
Unsecured, considered good 5 481,289,091 - 442 669,708

Unsecured, considered doubtful - = -

Secured, considered doubtful
Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) - (30,012,943) -
Allowance for disallowances (expected credit loss allowance) - (14,284,822) -
- 436,991,326 -

(17,118,165)
(13,203,254)
412,348,288

i. Confirmations of balances from Debtors, Creditors are yet to be received in a few cases though the Company has sent letters of confirmation to them. The
balances adopted are as appearing in the books of accounts of the Company.

ii. Sundry Debtors represent the debt outstanding on sale of pharmaceutical products, hospital services and project consultancy fees and is considered
good. The Company holds no other securities other than the personal security of the debtors.

iii. Advances and deposits represent the advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be realised. The amounts of these advances and deposits
are considered good for which the Company holds no security other than the personal security of the debtors.

-

Trade receivables
Majority of the Company's transactions are earned in cash or cash equivalents. The trade receivables comprise mainly of receivables from Insurance
Companies, Corporate customers and Government Undertakings. The entity's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is low.

The average credit period on sales of services is 30-60 days from the date of the invoice.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for receivables excluding Group Company and Tanzania. A
direct confirmation is obtained from Tanzania Government confirming the Receivable amount outstanding. The provision matrix takes into account historical
credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the

receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

No single customer represents 10% or more of the company's total revenue during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. Therefore the

customer concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base.

Ageing

Within the credit period

Expected Credit loss (%)

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Less than 6 months past due 0.00% 0.00%
6 months to 12 months past due 12.50% 12.50%
1 to 2 years past due 30.00% 30.00%
2 to 3 years years past due 50.00% 50.00%
>3 years past due 100.00% 100.00%

Year ended Year ended
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Balance at beginning of the year
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

(30,321,419)
(13,976,346)

(19,759,483)
(10,561,936)

Balance at end of the year (44,297,765) (30,321,419)
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.
9 Other Financial Assets 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Non Current Current Non Current Current
Security deposits 18,067,180 - 17,505,736 -
Operating lease receivable - 3,595,729 - 2,484,381
Interest Receivable 166,176 - 1,917,737
Prepaid Rent 50,071,780 - 50,351,511 -
68,138,960 3,761,905 67,857,247 4,402,118
10 Inventories As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
a) Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Medicines . 7,643,036 11,209,362
Lab materials & Other Consumables P P /;@M\Efﬁ.f"/-/,zg;gza,zss 64,648,104
N\ L R
S REGN Na3¥:871,302 75,857,466
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

11.1 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks. Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the reporting period as shown in the Consolidated statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the Consolidated balance

sheet as follows:

Cheques, drafts on hand & escrow alc.

Cash on hand
Current Account
Foreign Currency in hand

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Cash and bank balances included in a disposal Company held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents as per Consolidated statement of cash flows

11.2 Bank balances other than (note no. 11.1) above

Balances with Banks

Earmarked balances with banks (unpaid dividend)

Earmarked balances with banks (Others)

Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money

Other bank balances

12 Other Assets

Prepaid Expenses

Other Advances & Current Assets

13 Current Tax Assets (Net)
TDS Receivable
Advance Tax
Less : Provision for Tax
TOTAL

L

e

As at As at

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

46,476,627 24,483,234

3,453,600 12,918,902

33,929,777 24,570,610

- 143,834

83,860,003 62,116,581

83,860,003 62,116,581
As at As at

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

9,548,476 92,534,246

9,548,476 92,534,246

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Non Current Current Non Current Current
- 10,949,106 - 11,688,757
- 130,099,062 - 131,788,671
- 141,048,168 - 143,477,428
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

234,959,273 150,972,381
(69,963,264) (27,818,400)

164,996,009 123,153,981
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

14 Equity Share Capital

Equity share capital

Authorised Share capital :

10,87,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

10,87,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Previous Year as at 31st
March, 2018)

11,04,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each

11,04,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each (Previous Year as at 31st
March, 2018

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:

10,06,03,068 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
10,06,03,068 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up (Previous
Year)

14.1 Fully paid equity shares

Balance at March 31, 2017
Shares Issued during the year
Balance at March 31, 2018
Shares Issued during the period
Balance at March 31, 2019

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of Rs.10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.
The fair value of shares issued for consulting services was determined by reference to the market rate for similar consulting services.

The shares bought back in the current year were cancelled immediately,
14.2 Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates
Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominees
Subsidiaries of the holding company
Associates of the holding company

As at March 31, 2019

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominees
Subsidiaries of the holding company
Associates of the holding company

14.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2019

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

1,087,500,000

11,040,000

1,006,030,680

1,087,500,000

11,040,000

1,006,030,680

1,006,030,680

1,006,030,680

Number of shares Share capital
(Amount)

85,603,068 856,030,680
15,000,000 150,000,000
100,603,068 1,006,030,680
100,603,068 1,006,030,680

Number of shares

30,340,266

30,340,266

Share capital

303,402,660

303,402,660

As at March 31, 2018

Number of % holding of Number of % holding of
Shares held equity shares Shares held equity shares
Fully paid equity shares
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominees ‘ 30,340,266 30% 30,340,266 30%
Apollo Home Healthcare India Ltd & its nominees 19,961,265 20% 19,961,265 20%
IRM Trust & its nominees 50,301,531 50% 50,301,531 50%
15 Other equity
As at As at
Note 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Securities premium reserve 15.1 444,033,295 444 033,295
Retained earnings 152 (458,945,263) (516,263,553)
Other Comprehensive Income 15.3 5,211,389 4,580,368
Ind AS Transition Reserve 18,411,817 18,411,817
8,711,238 (49,238,073)
15.1 Securities premium reserve As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Balance at beginning of year (Securities premium reserve) 444 033,295 444,033,295
Balance at end of year . 444,033,295 444,033,295




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

15.2 Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of year

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Add: Adjustment towards non-controlling interest
Add: Adjustment towards Securities Premium of non-controlling interest

Others
Balance at end of year

15.3 Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at beginning of year

Movement in OCI(Net) during the year

Balance at end of year

15.4 Non-Controlling Interest
Balance at beginning of year
Profit/(Loss) during the year

Add: Adjustment towards Securities Premium of non-controlling interest
Add: Adjustment towards non-controlling interest

Balance at end of year

16 Borrowings

As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
(516,263,553) (535,504,638)
70,032,741 56,900,281
- 3,348,536
(12,714,452) (41,007,733)
(458,945,263) (516,263,553)
As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
4,580,368 (1,663,130)
631,021 6,243,498
5,211,389 4,580,368
As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
72,152,053 50,000,000
(25,908,879) (15,507,143)
12,714,452 41,007,733
- (3,348,536)
58,957,625 72,152,053

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Non Current Current Non Current Current

Unsecured - at amortised cost
Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares 136,800,745 - 130,272,000 -
Secured - at amortised cost
(i) Term loans

from banks (Refer note (vi) below) 457,296,845 - 430,878,368 -
(i) Loans repayable on demand - 71,135,465 - 70,128,185
Total 594,097,590 71,135,465 561,150,368 70,128,185

16.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements

(i) Redeemable Preference shares were amended in 2016-2017 for a cumulative non -discretionary dividend of 9% per annum. These redeemable
preference shares do not contain any equity compenent.

(ii) The terms of repayment of term loans and other loans are stated below.
As at March 31, 2019

Particluars Principal Principal
Outstanding as at Qutstanding as Terms of Rate of Interest 31 Rate of Interest 31
31st March,2019 at 31st repayment Mar 19 Mar 18
March,2018
Yes Bank 185,334,240 235,821,007 As per the fixed 9.95% 9.40%
repayment over 2
Years
Yes Bank 100,177,895 100,177,895 As per the fixed 9.95% 9.35%
repayment over 8
Years
HDFC Bank 144,000,000 216,000,000 As per the fixed 10.20% 9.75%
repayment over 2
Years
Yes Bank 148,358,934 - As per the fixed 9.80% -
repayment over 9
Years

(i) The group has availed Two Rupee Term Loans of Rs. 310 million and INR 100, 10 Mio from YES Bank Limited, which are repayable in thirty six
quarterly instalments, commencing from 26th Mar-13 and 24th Jul-17 respectively. The loans are secured by first pari passu charge on all present
and future movable and immovable fixed assets of the company along with minimum cover of 1.75 times the value of the outstanding considering
movable & immovable assets (subject to 1.5 times cover considering immovable assets).The company repaid Rs.50.49 million during the current
financial year 18-19.

(ii) The group has Rupee Term Loans of Rs 409.50 million from HDFC Bank Limited, which are repayable in 28 quarterly instalments, commencing
from 2nd Mar 2015. The loans are secured by first pari passu charge on all present and future movable and immovable fixed assets of the company
along with minimum cover of 1.75 times the value of the outstanding considering movable & immovable assets. The company repaid Rs.72.00 million
during the current financial year 18-19.

(i) The group has availed one Rupee Term Loans of Rs. 161.14 Million from YES Bank Limited, which are repayable in 28 quarterly instalments,
commencing from January 2022 . The loans are secured by first pari passu charge on all present and futurg.-«rf@ abl 'éijd,fmmovab.'e fixed assets of
the company along with minimum cover of 1.25 times the value of the outstanding considering movable /&_fim}’nﬁvable-faSSets. The company has not
commenced repayment and it is in Motrandum period . ‘ j i ‘7/ -

{

V' s £




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

17 Other financial liabilities

Non-current

a) Interest accrued

b) Current maturities of long-term debts
c) Security Deposits

d) Non Current Deferred Rent

Total

18 Provisions

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Non Current Current Non Current Current
- 4,900,715 - 4,450,700
- 119,370,000 - 119,801,026
1,819,586 - 1,794,586 -
26,851,398 - 15,359,423
28,670,984 124,270,715 17,154,009 124,251,725

As at March, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Non Current Current Non Current Current
Employee benefits 18,475,113 13,355,658 18,066,053 1,954,519
Total 18,475,113 13,355,658 18,066,053 1,954,519
19 Deferred tax balances As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Deferred Tax Assets 124,889,743 213,868,468
Deferred Tax Liabilities (110,021,523) (136,747,772)
MAT Credit Entitlement 88,140,156 45 995,292
Total 103,008,376 123,115,988
For the period ended on 31st March, 2019
Particulars / Details of Deferred tax balances Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in Recognised Closing
Profit or Loss other directly in Balance
comprehensive equity
income
Property Plant and Equipment (136,747,771) 26,726,248 - - (110,021,523)
Financial assets at Amortized Cost 1,336,303 (672,937) - - 763,366
Others Assets 13,155,912 (11,817,997) - - 1,337,914
Retirement Benefit Plans (4,063,700) 10,781,594 259,246 - 6,977,140
Business Loss carried forward under Income Tax 201,817,042 (99,172,377) - - 102,444 665
Provision for doubtful debts 6,812,415 6,203,574 - - 13,015,989
Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost (4,989,504) 5,340,175 - - 350,671
Total - A 77,120,696 (62,511,721) 259,246 - 14,868,221
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit (B) 45,995,292 42,144,864 88,140,156
Total ('C)= (A+B) 123,115,988 (20,366,857) 259,246 - 103,008,377
2017-18
Particulars Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in Recognised Closing
Profit or Loss other directly in Balance
comprehensive equity
income
Property Plant and Equipment (140,322,303) 3,674,531 - - (136,747,771)
Financial assets at Amortized Cost 1,332,328 3,975 - - 1,336,303
Others Assets 14,987,539 (1,831,627) - - 13,155,912
Retirement Benefit Plans (847,353) = (3,216,347) - (4,063,700)
Business Loss carried forward under Income Tax 248,701,311 (47,084,269) - - 201,617,042
Provision for doubtful debts 3,158,192 3,654,223 - - 6,812,415
Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost (3,855,069) (1,134,435) - - (4,989,504)
Total - A 123,154,645 (42,817,602) (3,216,347) - 77,120,696
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit (B) 18,176,892 27,818,400 - - 45,995,292
Total ('C)= (A+B) 141,331,537 (14,999,202) (3,216,347) - 123,115,988




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

20

21

Trade Payables

Trade Payable-MSME
Trade payables - Other than MSME
Total

(i) The average credit period on purchases of goods ranges from immediate
payments to credit period of 30 TO 60 DAYS

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Particulars

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the
year

- Principal

- Interest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act

The amount of payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during the accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
the MSMED Act

Other current liabilities

(a) Revenue received in advance
Deferred revenue arising from government grant
(b) Amount due to customers
(c) Statutory Dues
(d) Outstanding & Other Expense Payable
Total

As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
4,337,854 1,818,781
70,165,701 65,782,544
74,503,555 67,601,325
30-45 Days 30-45 Days
As At As At
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
4,337,854 1,818,781
As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
- 651,171
8,870,153 10,052,535
16,476,450 17,956,877
226,828,637 194,751,183
251,175,240 223,411,765




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

22 Revenue from Operations

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue for the year from

continuing operations (excluding other income-see note 23)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2019

(a) Revenue from rendering of healthcare services

(b) Revenue from sales at pharmacies
(c) Fees and Collections
(d) Other operating revenues

23 Other Income
a) Interest income

Interest on Bank Deposits & Others

b) Dividend Income
Dividends from equity investments

All dividends from equity investments designated as at FVTOCI
recognised for both the years relate to investments held at the end of each

c) Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly

attributable to such income)
Finance lease contingent rental income
Others (aggregate of immaterial items)

d) Other gains and losses

Net foreign exchange gains/ (losses)

(atb+c+d)

24 Cost of materials Consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Cost of materials consumed

25 Changes in inventories of finished goods,

Inventories at the end of the year:
Stock-in-trade (end of the year)

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade (beginning of the year)

Net (increase) / decrease

~ AT
worksin prot
5

REGN. No.

—

1,715,669,413 1,607,817,542

141,152,383 137,616,888
22,173,510 19,267,734
29,074,206 37,008,278

1,908,069,512 1,801,710,442

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2019 31, 2018
12,437,985 9,198,936
12,437,985 9,198,936

383,156 1,198,529

383,156 1,198,529

6,103,255 360,556
6,103,255 360,556
18,924,397 10,758,021

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2019 31, 2018
64,648,104 10,763,611
580,760,223 586,435,651
645,408,328 597,199,262
(29,928,266) (64,648,104)
615,480,061 532,551,158

ff,t%s\and stock-in-trade - Pharmacy

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2019 31, 2018
7,643,036 11,209,362
7,643,036 11,209,362

11,209,362 40,831,442
11,209,362 40,831,442
3,566,326 29,622,080
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

26 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Bonus

Staff welfare expenses

27 Finance costs

28

Continuing operations
(a) Interest costs :-
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (other than those from related
parties)
Interest on obligations under finance leases
Interest on convertible notes
Interest on interest-free government loans
Other interest expense
Total interest expense for financial liabilities not classified as at
FVTPL
Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets

(b) Amortized interest cost on redeemable preference shares

(c) Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

(d) Other borrowing costs :-
Unwinding of discount on costs to sell non-current assets classified as
held for sale

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment pertaining to continuing
operations

Depreciation of investment property

Amortisation of intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation pertaining to continuing
operations

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment pertaining to discontinued
operations

Total depreciation and amortisation expense
| Nre

Ao

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2019 31, 2018
285,390,008 269,055,795
14,884,134 13,442,666
7,102,200 7,201,307
20,917,794 22,219,100
328,294,136 311,918,868

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2019 31, 2018
58,640,216 58,695,949
9,364,069 6,498,985
68,004,286 65,194,934
68,004,286 65,194,934
7,072,924 10,051,604
75,077,210 75,246,538

Year ended March Year ended March

31, 2019 31, 2018
90,210,694 87,634,648
1,462,749 411,919
91,673,443 88,046,567
91,673,443 88,046,567
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

29 Other expenses

in the current year relating to continuing operations

Particulars Year ended March Year ended March
31,2019 31, 2018
Power and fuel 46,921,174 41,526,693
Water Charges 2,958,934 2,827,955
Rent 48,247,074 48,092,027
Repairs & Maintenance Expesnes
Repairs to Buildings, Machinery & Others 17,713,987 19,375,880
Repairs to Medical Equipments 2,012,951 5,197,069
Repairs to Vehicles 743,106 1,105,654
Annual maintainance Charges 18,321,430 14,205,756
Insurance 2,620,344 2,088,032
Retainer fees to Doctors 217,488,435 186,771,332
Outsource Charges
House Keeping Expenses 43,866,675 48,985,345
Food & Beverages Expenses 38,431,064 36,102,363
Bio Medical Maintenance 9,894,610 10,142,145
Securily Charges 15,853,997 13,921,362
Outsourcing Expenses - IT 878,823 -
Outsourcing Expenses 8,211,359 5,630,152
Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income 7,993,332 4,904,716
Other operating & administrative Expenses 4,704,033 27,709,332
Communication & Telephone Expeness 2,907,022 3,125,642
Director Sitting Fees 560,500 237,840
Advertisement, Publicity & Marketing 72,471,798 70,480,643
Travelling & Conveyance 17,363,672 14,302,016
Legal & Professional Fees 10,167,060 8,367,606
Continuing Medical Education & Hospitality Expenses 3,193,880 2,495,107
Seminar Expenses 4,025,752 2,337,565
Books & Periodicals 520,746 343,355
Provision for Bad Debts 13,294,778 6,651,136
Bad Debts Written off 670,607 3,075,078
Loss on Sale of Asset 113,206 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,804,730 4,233,680
613,955,078 584,235,481
29.1 Payments to auditors
a) For audit 1,032,500 767,000
b) For taxation matters & other services 147,500 155,000
c) For reimbursement of expenses 59,494 152,296
1,239,494 1,074,296
29.2 Expenditure incurred for corporate social responsibility 3,072,216 3,112,377
29.3 Income taxes relating to continuing operations
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current tax
In respect of the current year (Current tax) = 42,144,864 27,818,400
In respect of prior years \;;/' & - -
Others b - .
42,144,864 27,818,400
Less : MAT Entitlement credit (42,144,864) (27,818,400)
Net Current tax 5 -
Deferred tax b
In respect of the current year (Deferred tax) / 61,993,230 42,817,602
In respect of prior years - %
61,993,230 42,817,602
Total income tax expense(Before MAT Entitlement Credit) recognised 104,138,094 70,636,002




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations of Consolidated 106,117,091 84,210,739
Income tax expense calculated at 29.12% (2017-2018: 34.61% ) 30,901,297 29,145,337
Effect of Difference between Tax rate and MAT Rate (8,033,064) (11,494,766)
Effect of Expenses/Income Permanently not deductible or claimable for 3,394,910 5,471,965
Income tax

Effect of previously unrecognised and unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences on deferred tax assets unconsidered earlier and on
account of loss of subsidiary on

which no deferred tax asset is created as the entity has commenced its 77,874,951 47,513,466
operations only in the current year.
104,138,094 70,636,002

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing 104,138,094 70,636,002

operations) - before MAT Entitlement credits

The tax rate used for the year ended F.Y. 2018-19 is 29.12% and for F.Y. 2017-2018 is 34.61%.Reconciliations above is the
corporate tax rate of 29.12% (FY 2018-19) and (for FY 2017-18 34.61%) payable by corporate entities in India on taxable

profits under the Indian tax law.

As, Finance Act, 2019, the tax rate for companies having turnover in FY 2016-17 less than 250 crores, the tax rate would

be 25% plus surcharge and cess, accordingly in FY 2018-19, rate applied is 29.12%
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30 Segment information

30.1

30.2

Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues

The Directors of the company are directly involved in the operations of the Company, including the subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has
been identified as the Chief Operting Decision Maker (CODM).

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the model of healthcare services delivered. The directors of the Company have chosen to organise the Company around differences in
products and services. Accordingly, hospitals, pharmacies, and Nursing Institute have been identified as the roperating segments.

The Company operates in mainly in India, and the drugs sold in the pharmacies, are regulated under the Drug Control Act, which applies uniformly all
over the Country.

The accounting policies adopted for segment repoerting are in line with the accounting policies adopted in Consolidated financial statements with the
following additional policies for Segment Reporting:

a. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue
and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under “unallocable
expenses”.

b. Inter segment revenue and expenses are eliminated.
The Company has disclosed this Segment Reporting in Consolidated Financial Statements as per Ind AS 108

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable segment.

Segment Revenue Segment Profit

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Health care 1,738,733,362 1,637,755,257 138,773,450 179,059,209
Pharmacy 141,152,383 137,616,888 41,201,658 43,624,554
Nursing Institute 22,368,510 19,342,734 1,513,908 146,145
Total 1,902,254,255 1,794,714,879 181,489,016 222,829,907
Less: Inter Segment Revenue (1,629,250) (589,500) (589,500) (589,500)
Total for continuing operations 1,900,625,005 1,794,125,379 180,899,516 222,240,407
Other income 26,368,904 13,523,732
Central administration costs and (26,074,118) (33,538,045)

directors' salaries
Finance costs

(75,077,210)

(75,246,538)

Profit before tax (continuing operations)

106,117,092

126,979,556

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Company's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit before tax earned by each segment without allocation of central administration costs and directors' salaries, share of profit of associates, share
of profit of joint ventures, other income, as well as finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of

Segment assets and liabilities As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Segment Assets
Health care 2,070,304,877 1,738,801,091
Pharmacy 8,279,905 14,449,905
Nursing Institute 8,322,675 8,055,870

Total Segment Assets

Assets relating to ...... and ...... operations (now
discontinued)

Unallocated

Consolidated total assets

Segment liabilities
Health care
Pharmacy
Nursing Institute
Total Segment liabilities
Liab relating to ..... and ...... operations (now discontinued)
Unallocated
Consolidated total liabilities

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments:
+ all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than investments in associates, investments in joint ventures, other investments, loans, other
financial assets and current and deferred tax assets, which assets are reported under "Healthcare".

+ all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than borr
reported under "Healthcare".

2,086,907,456

448,890,023

1,761,306,866

356,382,097

2,535,797, 479

2,117,688,962_

1,160,898,556
8,279,905
8,322,675

1,033,354,990
14,448,905
8,055,870

1,177,501,135

1,055,860,765

1,177,501,135

1,055,860,765

ings, other financial liabilities,current and deferred tax liabilities which liabilities are
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30.3 Other segment information Depreciation Addition to Non Current Assets
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Health care 90,915,519 87,242,958 394,061,545 143,910,796
Pharmacy 95,898 81,370 334,867 183,001
Nursing Institute 662,027 676,405 47 415 1,875,123
91,673,443 88,000,733 394,443,827 145,968,920

In addition to the depreciation and amortisation reported above, impairment losses of Rs.Nil were recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment
and goodwill, respectively. These impairment losses were attributable to the following reportable segments.

Impairment losses recognised for the year in respect of property, plant and equipment

Health care Nil
Pharmacy Nil
Nursing Institute Nil

Nil

30.4 Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue from continuing operations from its major products and 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
services.
Health care 1,738,733,362 1,637,755,257
Pharmacy 141,152,383 137,616,888
Nursing Institute 22,368,510 19,342,734
Less: Inter Segment Revenue (1,629,250) (589,500)
1,900,625,005 1,794,125,379
Other Income 26,368,904 13,523,732
1,926,993,909 1,807,649,111

30.5 Information about major customers

31

314

No single customers contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for both 2018-2019 and 2017-2018.

Earnings per Share

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations 0.44 0.44
From discontinued operations = s
Total basic earnings per share 0.44 0.44
Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations 0.44 0.44
From discontinued operations - =
Total diluted earnings per share 0.44 0.44
Basic earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 44,123,861 41,393,137
Dividends paid on convertible non-participating preference Shares - 2
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 44,123,861 41,393,137
Profit for the year from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the Company - =
Others [describe] - =
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations 44,123,861 41,393,137
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 100,603,068 93,103,068

31.2 Diluted earnings per share

The earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows.

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 44,123,861 41,393,137
Interest on convertible notes (after tax at 30%) - -
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share Profit for the year from discontinued operations attr 44,123,861 41,393,137
Others [describe] - -
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings pershare from continuing operations 44,123,861 41,393,137

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the weighted average number of equity shares
used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:

Weighted average number of equity shares used in thecalculation of basic earnings per share

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:

- employee options

- partly paid equity shares

- convertible notes

- others [describe] A

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted earnings per share

-

AN A
>

93,103,068
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32 Employee benefit plans

32.1 Defined contribution plans
The employees of the Company's are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government. The Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Company with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense of Rs.97,43,715/- (out of which Rs.62,54,592/- towards pension fund and Rs.34,89,123/- towards PF, has been recognised for the year
in profit or loss (for the year ended March 31, 2018: Rs.1,27,35,456/- out of which Rs.88,41,227/- towards Pension fund contribution and Rs.38,94,229/-
for PF )represents contributions paid / payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

32.2 Defined benefit plans
The company contributes all ascertained liabilities with respect to gratuity to a fund under a Group Gratuity Scheme of LIC of India whose Plan Assets are
managed by LIC of India. The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retiring plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lumpsum payment to the vested employees at retirement / death / incapacitation / termination of employment based on the respective employees salary
and tenure of employment with the company

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as shown below:

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian
Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For,
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset
is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it
has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and
other debt instruments. Further, the overseas plan has a relatively balanced
investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real estates. Due to the
long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the overseas Fund
considers it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be
invested in equity securities and in real estate to leverage the return
generated by the Fund.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however,
this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt
investments

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by

reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in
the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried
out as at March 31, 2019

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows. Valuation as at

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Discount rate(s) 7.79% 7.85%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate 4.00% 3.00%
Retirement Age 58 58

Pre-retirement mortality

Average longevity at retirement age for current beneficiaries of the plan (years)*

Males Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2006-08) (2006-08)

Females Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2006-08) (2006-08)

Average longevity at retirement age for current employees (future beneficiaries of the plan) (years)*

Males NA
Females NA

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality/ others (please\ffd s
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Amounts recognised in Consolidated statement of profit and loss in respect of These defined benefit plar 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Service cost:

Current service cost 4,675,046 6,005,840
Past service cost and (gain)/loss from settlements 5,687 -

Net interest expense (4,989) 668,130
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 4,675,744 6,673,970

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 401,156.00 286,924.00
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 217,699.00 (635,744.00)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 191,780 (7,040,993)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience adjustments (1,700,902) (2,170,032)

Others [describe] - -
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset - -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

Total (890,267) (9,459,845)

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits
expense' line item in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss.
The remeasurernent of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the Consolidated balance sheet arising from

the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Present value of funded* defined benefit obligation (30,053,689) (28,825,971)
Fair value of plan assets 32,586,905 28,889,523
Funded status 2,533,216 63,552

Restrictions on asset recognised - -
Others [describe] - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 2,533,216 63,552

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Opening defined benefit obligation 28,825,971 32,143,533
Current service cost 4,675,046 6,005,840
Interest cost 2,262,839 2,462,195
Remeasurement (gains)/losses: )

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 217,699 (535,744)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 191,780 (7,040,993)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments (1,700,902) (2,170,032)
Others [describe] - -
Past service cost, including losses/(gains) on curtailments 5,687 -

Liabilities extinguished on settlements - =
Liabilities assumed in a business combination E 2
Exchange differences on foreign plans - =
Benefits paid (4,282,025) (2,038,828)

Others [describe] =
Closing defined benefit obligation 30,196,095 28,825,971
Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Opening fair value of plan assets 28,889,523 23,421,210
Interest income 2,267,828 1,794,065
Remeasurement gain (loss):
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (401,156) (286,924)
Others [describe] - -
Contributions from the employer = 6,112,735 6,000,000

Contributions from plan participants
Assets distributed on settlements

Assets acquired in a business combination
Exchange differences on foreign plans

(4,282,025) (2,038,828)

Benefits paid
Other [describe] -
Closing fair value of plan assets 32,586,905 28,889,523
The fair value of the plan assets for the India and overseas plan at the end of the period for each category, are as follows

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
- Insurance Fund 32,586,905 28,889,523

Total 32,586,905 28,889,523




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
1st Following Year 1,279,470 985,369
2nd Following Year 1,357,567 983,666
3rd Following Year 1,764,400 1,145,358
4th Following Year 2,474,244 1,503,016
5th Following Year 1,791,501 2,082,867
Sum of 6 to 10 Years 11,164,802 9,130,374
Sum of Years 11 and above 67,235,047 83,284,833

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Discount rate 100 basis points 100 basis points -2,898,731 -3,280,109 3,418,721 3,947,906
Salary growth rate 100 basis points 100 basis points 3,543,192 3,919,079 -3,067,267 -3,332,251
Employee Turnover 100 basis points 100 basis points 237,975 218,743 -269,700 -264,825

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the definedbenefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the
balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Each year an Asset-Liability-Matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk-
and-return profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this study. Main strategic choices that are formulated in the actuarial and
technical policy document of the Fund are:

= Asset mix based on 25% equity instruments, 50% debt instruments and 25% investment properties;
* Interest rate sensitivity caused by the duration of the defined benefit obligation should be reduced by 30% by the use of debt instruments in combination
= Maintaining an equity buffer that gives a 97.5% assurance that assets are sufficient within the next 12 months.

There has been no change in the process used by the Company to manage its risks from prior periods.

* The subsidary liability is unfunded.

The Company has employee benefit schemes by way of Privilege & Sick Leave encashment which are unfunded. These are actuarily valued every year
and the liability thereof for Sick leave is INR 61,82,749/- and that for Privilege Leave is INR 1,37,75,368/-. The assumptions are the same as considered
in Group Gratuity benefit (disclosed above).

33 Financial instruments
33.1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in borrowing notes) offset by cash and bank balances and total equity
of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company's risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the committee
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Company is initaiting efforts to reduce the gearing ratio.

Gearing ratio As at As at
— 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.

Debt (i) 665,233,055 631,278,553

Cash and bank balances (including cash and bank balances in a disposal (83,860,003) (62,116,581)

Company held for sale)

Net Debt 581,373,052 569,161,972

Total Equity 1,073,699,543 1,028,944 ,660

Net debt to equity ratio 0.54 0.55

(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings (excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts and contingent consideration), as
described in notes.
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33.2 Categories of financial instruments
As at As at
Financial assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(a) Mandatorily measured: - -
(i) Equity investments = -
(i) Derivative instruments other than designated hedge accounting - -
relationships

(b) Designated as at FVTPL Measured at amortised cost - -
(i) Mutual Fund investments

Measured at amortised cost

(a) Cash and bank balances (including cash and bank balances in a 83,860,003 62,116,581
disposal Company held for sale)

(b) Other financial assets at amortised cost (including trade receivables in 440,753,231 416,750,406
a disposal Company held for sale)

Measured at FVTOCI
(a) Debt instruments - =
(b) Investments in equity instruments designated upon initial recognition -

Financial liabilities

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(a) Held for trading - -
(b) Designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition - -
(c) Derivative instruments other than in designated hedge

accounting relationships

Measured at amortised cost (including trade payables balance in a - =
disposal Company held for sale)

Borrowings 665,233,055 631,278,553
Trade Payables and others 198,774,270 191,853,051

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

Carrying amount of financial assets designated as at FVTPL - =
Cumulative changes in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk - -
Changes in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk recognised - -
during the year

33.3 Financial risk management objectives
The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets,

monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Corporate Treasury function reperts quarterly to the Company's senior management and board of directors , that monitors risks and policies
implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

33.4 Market risk

The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The company's
finance team manages these risk by effective financial management.

33.5 Foreign currency risk management
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are managed within approved policy parameters

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as

follows.
\ Assets as at
: 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Trade Receivables (In USD) ~ 1,922,400 1,524,232
Trade Receivables (In INR) f“ 133,491,422 99,181,755
=
-
-~
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Foi'eign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to currency dollars.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the Rs. 7,07,03,618/- against the relevant foreign currencies.
10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or
equity where the Rs. strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the Rs. against the relevant currency, there would be a
comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

2018-19 2017-18
+10% -10% +10% -10%
Impact on Profit or Loss for the year 13,349,142 (13,349,142) 9,918,176 (9,918,176)
Impact on Equity for the year 13,349,142 (13,349,142) 9,918,176 (9,918,176)

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the
reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

33.6 Interest rate risk management
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed
by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, and by the use of interest rate swap contracts and
forward interest rate contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-
effective hedging strategies are applied.

The Company's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's:

* profit for the year ended March 31, 2019 would decrease/ increase by INR 2.92 Million (for the year ended March 31, 2018: increase by INR 3.96
Million). This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings; and

« other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2019 would not have been impacted (for the year ended March 31, 2018: would not have
been impacted)

33.7 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Majority of the
Company's transactions are earned in cash or cash equivalents. The trade receivables comprise mainly of receivables from Insurance Companies,
Corporate customers and Government Undertakings. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain minimum reserve levels and the Corporate
Customers are enterprises with high credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is considered low.
Before accepting any new credit customer, the Company uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed anually. The outstanding with the debtors is reviewed
periodically.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

34 Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitering forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 34below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities that
the Company has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.
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34.1 Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financialliabilities with agreed repayment periods. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars Weighted 3 months to 1 1 Year to 5 years > 5 years
average effective year
interest rate( %)
March 31, 2019
Non-interest bearing - - -
Variable interest rate instruments * 9.50%* 104,024,436 340,352,305 155,902,173
Fixed interest rate instruments * 10.90% - - -
104,024,436 340,352,305 155,902,173
March 31, 2018
Non-interest bearing - - -
Variable interest rate instruments * 9.50%* 85,074,940 393,359,377 92,590,624
Fixed interest rate instruments * 10.90% 279,250 - =
85,354,190 393,359,377 92,590,624

* These are not cumulative
** Existing Average interest rate
The carrying amounts of the above are as follows: As at As at

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Non-interest bearing
Variable interest rate instruments 562,455,206 550,121,114
Fixed interest rate instruments - 428,895

562,455,206 550,550,009

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

34.2 Financing facilities

As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Secured bank overdraft facility:
- amount used 71,135,465 70,128,185
- amount unused 108,864,535 109,871,815
180,000,000 180,000,000
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Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

The company considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the Consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

Particulars As at 31 March, 2019 As at 31 March, 2018
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost;
- loans to related parties - - -
- trade receivables 436,991,326 436,991,326 412,348,288 412,348,288
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 83,860,003 83,860,003 62,116,581 62,116,581
- Other Financial Assets 71,900,865 71,900,865 72,259,365 72,259,365
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
- convertible notes (including interest accrued) - - -
- perpetual notes - - - -
- bank loans 528,432,310 528,432,310 501,006,553 501,006,553
- Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares 136,800,745 136,800,745 130,272,000 130,272,000
- loans from related parties < " 3 2
- Other Financial Liabilities 124,270,715 124,270,715 126,046,311 126,046,311
- trade payables 74,503,555 74,503,555 67,601,325 67,601,325

Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Company and other related parties are disclosed below.

List of Related Parties
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd

Green Channel Travels Services Private Limtied

IRM Enterprises Private Limited

Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited

Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited

Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limited
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited

Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
MedSmart Logistics Private Limited
Dhruvi Pharma Private Limited

Apollo Munich Health Insurance Co. Ltd.

Trading transactions

Relationship

Holding Company

Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence

Particulars during the year, Company entities entered into the following trading transactions with related parties that are not members of the Company:

Related party transactions

Purchase Service Rendered lncome|  Service Avalled Reimbursement of Exps | Reimbursement of Exps Other Income Ouislanding Oulstanding Receivable
) from operation etc) | {description to be given)* | incurred on behalf of RPT | incurred by RPT onour | (Reat, Interest, Others Payable

Parfculas bahalt o)

SMar9  SMae8|  3tMardd  MMardg)  3Mardd  3Martd]  MMardd  3AMardgl 3Marts  3Marts] 3tMardd  MMards MMatd  MMards| MMty 3Maris
Apolia Hospitals Enterprise Limited 623043 782615 1262812 185273 000783 278%8507| 368 1737 13411323 64810343 B3| 213966
Cadla Phamacuticals Limied 10434318 6570972 1.044568] 2633685 - . 1976) 117125 1819208 2418383
Green Channel Travels Services Private Limtied 9263816| 6,904,264 - 678243) 162,03
IRM Enterprises Private Limited 51,800 U1 - 1030 1195% 3100 3,100 . 10,030
Slemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited 36,000 2411424 2305871 4308.946) 3625251 . -] 1017804 500125
Apoflo Sindoori Hotels Limied 49B90| BB 123919  115458| 193630 852018 3621842 6244128
Faber Sindoori Maragement Services Private Limted 9882510] 992652 4,178 . 83346) 797419 -
Indraprastha Medical Corporalion Limiled . . - 5350 . 264,262 316,198 -
Apolo Health and Lifestyle Limiled - BI7MO[ 631380 : | 2ssed| 1T
MedSmar Logistcs Prvale Limited 51262880 | 33494.2% 91958%| 7314010
Dhauvi Pharma Private Limited 160,101,834 | 75558 454 2 18,865,110| 10418590 - -
Apolo Murich Health Inswrance Co. Lid. 30044591 ( 21579,7% 300402( 37M03%2

Service Availed from RPT;
- Booking of Air tickets from Green Channel Travels Services Private Limited
- Food & Beverage services from IRM Enterprises Private Limited o z
//

- F&B-Manpower services from Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited
- Biomedical-Manpower services from Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limtied
- Quisource Lab Investigation to StemCyte India Therapeutics Private Limited
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Employee Benefits 10,210,746 10,869,807
10,210,746 10,869,807

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

Operating lease arrangements

The Company as lessee

Leasing arranangement

Operating leases relate to leases of land with lease terms of between 5-10 yrs . All operating lease contracts over 5 years contain clauses for 5-yearly
market rental review .The Company does not have an option to purchase the leased land at the expiry of the lease periods.

Payments recognised as an expense Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Minimum lease payments 38,806,338 38,806,338

38,806,338 38,806,338

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Not later than 1 year 29,701,056 27,314,364
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 161,086,649 156,524,565
Later than 5 years 524,876,194 559,139,334

715,663,899 742,978,263

Liabilities recognised in respect of non-cancellable operating leases

Commitments
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 5,843,218 1,320,409

The Company's share of the capital commitments made jointly with other joint venturers relating to its joint venture, is as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Commitments to contribute funds for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 5,843,218 1,320,409
Commitments to provide loans - -

Commitments to acquire other venturer's ownership interest when a particular event occurs or does not
occur in the future (please specify what the particular event is) = -
Others (please specify) - -

Contingent liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 66,027,000 59,527,000
(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees - -
(d) Other money for which the company is contingently liable
Customs Duty 2 S
Service Tax 17,616,820 17,904,795
Value Added Tax - -
Income Tax = -
EPCG -
(e) Other money for which the company is contingently liable
- Contingent liabilities incurred by the Company arising from its
interests in joint ventures & subsidiaries (Letter of Comfort to
YES Bank for Credit Facilities of Apollo-Amrish Oncology
Services Pvt. Ltd & Apollo CVHF Limited)

166,405,956 70,000,000

- Contingent liabilities incurred by the Company arising from its interests in associates (please disclose the - -
- Company's share of associates' contingent liabilities (ii) = -
- Company's share of joint venture's contingent liabilities = =

(i) A number of contingent liabilities have arisen as a result of the Company's interest in its joint venture. The amount disclosed represents the

aggregate amount of such contingent liabilities for which the Compa s an investor is liable. The extent to which a eutﬂew&frf‘unds will be required
is dependent on the future operations of the joint venture being more jor less favourab!e than curremly expec/te & ﬁé bfﬁ a is not contingently
3\ \\' /

liable for the liabilities of other venturers in its joint venture. f
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

(i) The amount disclosed represents the Company's share of contingent liabilities of associates. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be
required is dependent on the future operations of the associates being more or less favourable than currently expected.

(iii) The guarantees included above excludes financial guarantees given to banks by the Company to secure the financing facilities obtained by the
subsidiaries and other Company companies.

40 Events after the reporting period
There are no reportable events occuring after the balance sheet date.

41 Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on _16-05-2019

42 Earnings in Foreign Currency

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

(1) Earnings in Foreign Currency
income from Hospital Services 75,583,712 78,422,114

(2) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Travelling & Marketing Expenses 8,335,863 2,782,324
Professional charges (Pre & followup care fees) 1,036,191 784,732
(3) Volume of Imports in Foreign Currency - Capital Goods - 44 103,547

(4) Imported Materials -

(Consumptions relates to items used for healthcare services only)
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